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Corporate Profile
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Cyberport is an innovative digital community BHEB A —ERIFhEnmS 112 -

with over 900 digital technology companies. PERR B IBO00 B RERHR A ]
Engaging in four key technology clusters: &It EIE = ER R EEEER
FinTech, Big Data/Artificial Intelligence, RS ZE | ERRF « KEUE/

e-commerce, and Internet of Things/Wearables; ATIEfE « EF i B RAHH4E/
which can foster the development of Hong Kong FAIZF&ERH » HEFHESHEER

into a “Smart City”. Many have since become BEEEMEE - BESEIRIEE
leaders in their fields: NOEAFTESHEREES -
origami
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Snapask EduTech #B## / instant tutoring app EIFFEEMIEET & P.37

EventXtra Business Solution BEZZR5ZE / event management platform ;EENEIEF A | P.38
GOGOVAN E-commerce EFHEE / logistics platform ¥F& P.39
Dragon Law Business Solution BIZERRZE / legal software platform JARE} 4 F & P. 42
Origami Labs Wearables BIZF# A / smart ring BAENIE P. 43

Heycoins FinTech $R8%H / smart kiosks 25 AERRER STtk P. 45
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Cyberport is an innovative digital community with over 900 digital
technology companies. It is managed by Hong Kong Cyberport
Management Company Limited, which is wholly owned by the Hong Kong
SAR Government. With the vision to become a main force in developing
the digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong,
Cyberport is committed to nurturing youth and start-ups by providing
comprehensive entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;
scaling digital technology companies with our global network; and
connecting enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital economy.

Cyberport focuses on building four keys technology clusters, namely
FinTech, Big Data/Artificial Intelligence (Al), e-commerce and Internet of
Things (loT)/Wearables, to foster the development of Hong Kong into a
“Smart City”. With a committed team of professionals providing all-round
value added services to support our digital community, and an array of
state-of-the-art technology facilities, Cyberport is the flagship of Hong
Kong's digital technology industry.
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Klook E-commerce EF R HE / travel services booking platform FkilE8ETESI & | P. 46
Lattice FinTech &REFHY / wealth management FAE B2 P. 47
Shopline E-commerce EF#HE / B2B software platform B2BE{FF & P. 52
Aprivacy FinTech &R / digital security R 2 P.53
TNG Wallet FinTech &RifH% / e-wallet EFEEE P. 54
Lynk Business Solution BRI EE / online expert network I LERF & P. 55
Yeechoo E-commerce BBF & / fashion rental platform FFEEFREF & P. 56



Highlights for 2016/17
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Nurtures Innovation Inspires Future

RV RIE RRIREK

Cyberport's comprehensive start-up support, tailored entrepreneurship
programmes, strategic partnerships and outreach efforts are
springboarding Hong Kong's start-ups to success. We have gathered
unprecedented momentum in 2016/17, laying a solid foundation for our
dynamic start-up community to grow, thrive, and drive Hong Kong's new
economy development.

70+

BEERVAILERHENZAULE %
TLIERIRI S B RIRIKRE SRR H » 1
BNVIRI R R RIBEIFERE > BFLIEM o 1Y
2016/1TFE » AN ITIFERRY - 1B
MAIEERE » HHRIERN  HIHS
PR ERMABEBMESEE o LT
E - IEIER2016/17TFEHMEOE A
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awards won in HK, Mainland China, Asia & Europe
BB REIA )~ T3 R BN RV IR IR

HK$957M+ 30

investment raised

180

new CCMF grantees & incubatees
WINARYERS BRI B A

BEEHEAKIEE AT 4 500
- A
youths joined tech-focused
7 1 activities
digital technology interns F5ASMBEAERIES)
SHERHR BB AH

3,900+

Career Fair attendees

SINHEEBEAR
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start-ups joined accelerators
FIRIEEZ2NNiEEEst S

Youth & Talents
IEREEEAA




tech events
RS 1 5 7

overseas companies i
soft-landed at Cyberport _ .

2 3 TEIMA B L BURE

companies expanded
to global markets

ERERBINTEHNAT

Partners &
Global Network

ERSIFBH AR

Entrepreneurship
& Investment

BRIRIERIE

S

Cyberport Community Eli5#Et&"*

359 79 451

Smart-Space companies tech tenants CCMF grantees

Smart-Space ‘A ] (RESYNSTEITN= & incubatees
HISBRIRMEES
HEKIBEE AT

6,000 122,000 sq.ft.+

working population at Cyberport Smart-Space total floor area
HIEBEE TIEAS Smart-Space #HEE

$

Remarks: et S 2016/17 £4R 05
Unless specified, figures for the year ended 31 March 2017 BRAF R BFIRIBEIZE 201743831 H IEHBEE
# Figures as of 31 March 2017 # }20174E3 831 ANEE
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£ We possess an established leading position for FinTech in the region,
geographical proximity to Mainland China’s world-leading Internet+
market, and the strong economic potential in the Guangdong-
Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area and under the Belt and Road initiative.
Cyberport is thus well positioned to propel digital technology
entrepreneurs to new heights and capture the immense opportunities
along the Digital Silk Road.

BERGHEREDMNERMEIRZRIVES ; M LB EE > 45T
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BEXAEE BT - MEBRHBRREERFREZHK » EiE#H
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I am honoured to present the annual report of Cyberport for the Financial
Year ended 31 March 2017 (2016/17) and share with you the strides our
organisation has made over the past financial year.

Springboard to Success

At Cyberport, our mission is to foster digital technology, adding value to
the economy and laying a solid foundation for further social and economic
development of Hong Kong. We are proud to demonstrate our commitment
by establishing Cyberport as a springboard for young, passionate
entrepreneurs with global ambition. We have built a robust ecosystem
that connects digital technology companies with local and international
investors and business partners. Our community includes technology giants
like Microsoft, IBM and Lenovo, as well as start-ups such as GOGOVAN, TNG
Wallet and Klook. Large and small, these companies are critical drivers
of the digital technology industry and enrich our lives with innovative
solutions. From Internet+ platforms to disruptive business models, our
unique community provides unparalleled opportunities to collaborate, build
the new economy, and drive economic value creation for Hong Kong.

With Hong Kong's thriving start-up ecosystem and the solid development
of our digital technology companies, our efforts in 2016/17 sought to
capitalise on this. We bolstered our relationships with stakeholders and
strategic partners, developed closer cooperation with the government
and regulators, and expanded the pathways for our start-ups to scale. We
reinforced Cyberport’'s brand positioning, enhanced our corporate talent,
and galvanised interest and support from investors, industry leaders and
the public.

Coupled with new policies and initiatives from the government, Hong Kong
has witnessed a powerful surge in entrepreneurial spirit and innovative
technologies. Accordingly, the Cyberport community has grown to a
strong community of over 900 companies, with investment raised by these
companies reaching a record high of over HK$957 million in 2016/17. The
companies have also earned over 70 awards that recognised their leading-
edge innovations.
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All these developments have laid a solid foundation for the start-up
and digital technology ecosystem to thrive. We possess an established
leading position for FinTech in the region, geographical proximity
to Mainland China's world-leading Internet+ market, and the strong
economic potential in the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macao Bay Area
(Greater Bay Area) and under the Belt and Road initiative. Cyberport
is thus well positioned to propel digital technology entrepreneurs to
new heights and capture the immense opportunities along the Digital
Silk Road. Yet there is more work to be done - Hong Kong must stay
competitive, continue to develop talent and attract capital, while
exploring opportunities globally. This is where our SMART strategy
comes in.

Smart People + Smart Ideas

Talent is crucial to the digital industry, and innovation is defined by ideas,
skills, entrepreneurial acumen, and networks. We seek to inspire our
young people and enable these creative innovators to drive Hong Kong
into the digital 21st century. Our comprehensive youth programmes inspire
students and young people about digital technology at a young age and
support them to pursue a future in digital innovation.

We work in tandem with the government'’s education policy to ensure that
our efforts achieve maximum impact. Initiatives including our flagship
programme, the Cyberport University Partnership Programme (CUPP);
and STEM events that attract young talents every year. We also host
internships, hackathons, career fair, and entrepreneurship programmes
that provide all rounded support and advanced training. All these
programmes achieved record attendance/application in 2016/17

Smart Capital + Smart Business

Smart businesses and companies require quality investment to scale
and succeed. In 2016/17, we have expanded our network and facilitated
investments and deal flows for our start-ups. The Cyberport Macro Fund,
for example, lined up investors from Malaysia, Mainland China, and Africa;
and facilitated the US$4 million co-investment in Lynk, a digital platform
connecting people to the right experts for advice. From a nascent business,
Lynk has built up a close partnership with Cyberport and is now looking
forward to expanding globally.

In addition to investments, adding technology to key business pillars of
Hong Kong will accelerate the city's new economy development. Start-ups
need to work with major enterprises to develop market-ready solutions
and take the solutions beyond home shores, while enterprises require
innovative solutions to drive efficiency and maintain competitiveness. For
this reason, we have continued to strengthen our strategic partnerships
with relevant stakeholders and connect them to our community to facilitate
the adoption of innovation.

Fostering collaboration is crucial to market access within Mainland China
and the global market. The newly-launched Greater Bay Area is home to
66 million people and a contributor of 12.5% to China's GDP. Hong Kong's
geographical position allows us to benefit from both the Mainland China
market and capture global opportunities. We will strengthen our exchange
and collaboration with partners in the key cities within Mainland China, as
well as the Asia Pacific region to create a formidable economic hub and
connect opportunities along the north-south digital superhighway.
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Smart Data + Smart City

Cyberport has identified four key technology clusters that are crucial to
Hong Kong's further development into a leading smart city: FinTech, Big
Data/Al, e-commerce, and Internet of Things (loT)/Wearables. We have
committed ourselves to making Hong Kong a FinTech hub of Asia and of
the world. Hong Kong's strong governance, free data flow, auditing system,
trusted data management, robust Intellectual Property Rights (IPRs)
protection, and international character provide all the crucial conditions for
this.

Our FinTech cluster now comprises over 200 companies and is the largest
FinTech community in the region. We continue to bridge technology
companies with regulatory bodies and financial institutions. We also connect
our FinTech start-ups to key markets around the world to expand their reach.

Data is the currency of the internet economy, and Hong Kong can take
advantage of its infrastructural advantages to become a data hub for the
ASEAN countries and the world. Such efforts will be buoyed by related
developments in Al technologies, FinTech, loT/Wearables, and e-commerce.

Our Way Forward

To ensure that Cyberport continues to drive digital technology development,
we have been strengthening market recognition of Cyberport’s role in
the Hong Kong digital technology scene, as evidenced by our stellar
track record in enabling our start-ups to scale and succeed. Cyberport's
reputation was one of the key factors that contributed to the remarkable
deal flows and impact achieved in 2016/17 and its establishment as a
favoured base for digital technology companies both local and abroad.

BEE + B8WHH
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It is paramount for Hong Kong to leverage its innovation, build the
new economy and accelerate momentum in the digital technology
industry. Cyberport is committed to nurturing the new generation
of digital technology SMEs on their entrepreneurial and innovation

journey.

EEEECERRIMERS BN ERINZEHBRFZITERNZ
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In 2017/18, we will set up the Cyberport Advisory Panel that brings top
community leaders to share their lifelong experience and extensive
network to offer invaluable assistance to start-ups and Cyberport's
further development. To further increase deal flows and accelerate start-
up investment, we will also host the Cyberport Venture Capital Forum
and launch the Cyberport Investors Network in late 2017. These visionary
initiatives will bring leading venture capitalists, angel investors, and private
equity funds to Cyberport to connect with the largest digital technology
community in the region. This linkage of talent and smart capital will
provide the necessary impetus for growth of our ecosystem and deliver
powerful economic benefits to Hong Kong.

As we move forward with our third 3-Year Strategic Plan, we remain
committed to our public mission and are strengthening Hong Kong's
digital ecosystem, and enabling companies to expand their global footprint.
The Mainland China market is leading the world and we are at the right
time and place to ride the wave of transformative technologies. We will
leverage our international standing to be a magnet for elite Mainland China
companies seeking a springboard for countries along the Belt and Road,
while attracting international technology companies looking at entering the
Mainland China market.

| would like to thank the Board for their insights and contribution to bring
our dreams and pubic mission to fruition. | would also like to take this
opportunity to welcome three new directors to our Board - Dr Gregg Li,
Mr Ling Kar-kan and Ms Rosana Wong; as well as extending my sincere
gratitude to Mr Douglas So and Mr Peter Yan, our two retiring members
of the Board. We are indebted to the Hong Kong SAR Government as well,
and in particular the Innovation and Technology Bureau, for the impetus we
have been given. The Policy Address and Budget Speech have imbued us
with the resources, drive, and determination to turn Hong Kong into one of
the world's leading digital hubs.

Last but not least, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to the
colleagues at Cyberport for their dedication and professionalism. My
appreciation also goes to the industry partners and friends of Cyberport for
their strategic advice and continuous support, which are all critical to our
success.

It is paramount for Hong Kong to leverage its innovation, build the new
economy and accelerate momentum in the digital technology industry.
Cyberport is committed to nurturing the new generation of digital technology
SMEs on their entrepreneurial and innovation journey. Together, we
shall build a strong brand for Hong Kong, attract the best talent and top
technology companies, enhance our competitive edge, and further the city's
legacy into the next century and beyond.

Lee George LAM #45R4&
Chairman £ /&
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2016/17 was a year of tremendous growth for our start-ups,
with record deal flows, and plenty of success stories. The digital
technology ecosystem we have built has gathered momentum and
the Cyberport community continues to grow in diversity. The results
are plain for all to see, with a magnificent increase in top-class start-
ups, entrepreneurs, and solutions, enriched support, and noteworthy
progress in fulfilling our public mission.

2016/17FEE I HEEEBIYEIE X S S BEY—F - [RIBE 212K
#oERS) o W2 T AL IIBIRIEIEZE - EEEH EZREAEZT
16 > BEAUBRIRELBIGEFREXE)T] > HAaE B - JRXH)
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MAER T E » XEERI T—AKZ o

2016/17 was a year of tremendous growth for our start-ups, with record
deal flows, and plenty of success stories. The digital technology ecosystem
we have built has gathered momentum and the Cyberport community
continues to grow in diversity. The results are plain for all to see, with a
magnificent increase in top-class start-ups, entrepreneurs, and solutions,
enriched support, and noteworthy progress in fulfilling our public mission.

We concluded our second 3-Year Strategic Plan on a high note. The
solidity of our ecosystem sets a clear aim to engage more investors, SMEs,
enterprises, and the public, and intensify the impact we have made for all
key clusters - FinTech, Big Data/Al, e-<commerce, and loT/Wearables. Part
and parcel of this is expanding the reach of Hong Kong's start-ups into the
Belt and Road, the Greater Bay Area, and other niches across the globe.

A vibrant ecosystem

With increasing globalisation brings a diverse and international digital
community to Hong Kong. The tremendous mix of individuals and
companies at Cyberport - which is one of our greatest assets - lends
immeasurable strength to our ability to amass synergy, attract investors,
amplify collaboration, and advance Hong Kong's digital technology
development.
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Technology companies are attracted to Cyberport for its nurturing culture
of entrepreneurship, positivity, and camaraderie. For instance, banks
visiting the Smart-Space FinTech to discover solutions; universities across
the world seek job opportunities for their students from our 900 companies;
along with investors visiting to our network and collaborate.

Momentum delivers optimism

Cyberport carries out a broad selection of programmes, events and
activities to inspire youth, nurture entrepreneurs, and connect partners, to
develop Hong Kong into a world-leading internet economy and digital hub.

We have witnessed interest in this mission increase manifold, with
applications to Cyberport’'s signature entrepreneurship initiatives,
the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF) and Cyberport Incubation
Programme, rising at exponential levels. Applications grew 25%, reaching
more than 1,000 in number, which is the highest number of applications
received since the launch of the programmes. In 2016/17, there are now 77
CCMF grantees and more than 100 incubatees that have emerged from our
programmes, with funding reaching a record high of over HK$957 million.

Another reason for optimism was the surge in our community members.
In 2016/17, we welcomed over 150 new companies to the Cyberport
community, accumulated to close to 200 FinTech companies in our Smart-
Space FinTech, along with approximately 170 companies in e-commerce,
and others in EduTech, professional services, and Internet+. This has
further boosted our diversity in the Cyberport community and opened up
new avenues for collaboration.

With the opening of Smart-Space FinTech in December 2016 and
Cyberport’s efforts targeting all segments of the FinTech ecosystem, Hong
Kong's FinTech ecosystem is undergoing unprecedented growth. We have
reached a critical mass, crucial for facilitating connections with investors
and regulators. Our aim is to further develop the FinTech ecosystem across
Hong Kong, the region and the globe.

Top quality collaboration

Our long-term engagement with the global digital technology community
offers us the pedigree to provide effective support to Hong Kong's start-
ups. As a result of our experience, we are seeing an ever-increasing
number of solutions emerging from Cyberport's programmes, and making
noticeable impact among the public as well.
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Start-ups such as GOGOVAN, Klook, and TNG Wallet are becoming known as
established brands, and household names in the market, offering everyday
solutions for people. Concurrently, funding levels have risen along with
deal flows and recognition by award bodies - both in Hong Kong and
abroad.

Expanded community reach

In 2016/17, Cyberport forged closer ties with regulators, financial
institutions, investor communities, including the Hong Kong Business Angel
Network and the Hong Kong Venture Capital and Private Equity Association,
universities, international accelerators, and overseas delegations. Through
our efforts we have become the partner of choice for global technology
companies looking at the Hong Kong market and beyond into Mainland
China and Asia. With an expansion to over 70 partners in 2016/17, we look
forward to continuing leading the way.

Talent on tap

Cyberport thrives on talent, and to this end, we have organised a host of
digital technology events, including coding workshops, hackathons, and
bootcamps. Engaging youth with fun, inspiring and creative initiatives is just
one element of our drive to attract talent. Another facet of this is to offer
internships in Hong Kong, Shanghai, and Silicon Valley, including at many
of Cyberport’'s alumni start-ups, in addition to highlighting opportunities at
our career fair.
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““In the coming 3 years, we aim to bring in additional anchor companies
and galvanise more investors, enterprises, SMEs, along with the public,
to amplify our digital transformation. We will also attract investments for
start-ups and to co-invest in them to strengthen the Cyberport ecosystem
and have additional resources available to assist these companies in their

growth strategies.
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CEO’s Report
THAAERE

Success stories accumulate

One of the most satisfying aspects of being CEO of Cyberport is witnessing
start-ups succeed. | fondly recall meeting the founders of Heycoins for
the very first time, when they were so nascent, and humble, that they
presented their business concept with cardboard. Now their solutions are
being deployed across the city. There are so many examples of this, such
as when Snapask and TNG Wallet were still budding enterprises, and now
have landed in cities across continents. GOGOVAN, one of our early CCMF
grantees and incubatees, has thrived in Hong Kong, started in Singapore, and
are on their way to the Belt and Road. Meanwhile, Smart-Space’s Canadian
company APrivacy outdid 700 FinTech start-ups worldwide and gained a spot
at the prestigious global FinTech Hackcelerator. We saw many more start-up
success stories in 2016/17 and witnessed how their innovative solutions are
benefitting our community, SMEs, and the public.

A solid foundation

I must thank our partners, investors, stakeholders, and friends from all
corners of the society for their support to Cyberport and belief in Hong
Kong's digital potential. Over the last 3 years, Cyberport has nurtured start-
up culture and digital innovation in Hong Kong. With a diverse and vibrant
community assembled, a growing ecosystem and surging momentum with
our start-ups, we are at the optimum position to enhance our standing.

In the coming 3 years, we aim to bring in additional anchor companies
and galvanise more investors, enterprises, SMEs, along with the public,
to amplify our digital transformation. We will also attract investments for
start-ups and to co-invest in them to strengthen the Cyberport ecosystem
and have additional resources available to assist these companies in their
growth strategies.

With the government's lead and support, Cyberport will connect our
start-ups to new markets, engage more stakeholders, build stronger
partnerships, and promote bi-directional talent exchange. Through these
endeavours, we will allow our expanding body of mature start-ups a
broader avenue to thrive and a larger stage to shine.

VAT

Herman LAM k[RS8
Chief Executive Officer 1TIEC#E %,
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Chairman of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited FE& IS E#EIRERATESZHER

Lee George LAM
xRz

Dr. Lee George LAM is Non-Executive Chairman — Hong Kong and ASEAN
Region and Chief Adviser to Macquarie Infrastructure and Real Assets Asia, a
member of the HKSAR Government’s Committee on Innovation, Technology
and Re-industrialisation, the Council on Professional Conduct in Education, the
Hong Kong Council on Smoking and Health, the Court of the City University
of Hong Kong, Hong Kong Trade Development Council (HKTDC) Belt and
Road Committee and Sir Murray MaclLehose Trust Fund Investment Advisory
Committee, Honourary Advisor to Hong Kong Business Angel Network, Vice
Chairman of the United Nations Economic and Social Commission for Asia and
the Pacific (UNESCAP) Business Advisory Council and Chairman of its Task
Force on Banking and Finance, Chairman of the Permanent Commission on
Economic and Financial Issues of World Union of Small and Medium Enterprises
(WUSME), a Board member of Pacific Basin Economic Council (PBEC),
Honorary Chairman — Asia Pacific of CMA Australia, Chairman of Monte Jade
Science and Technology Association of Hong Kong and President of Hong
Kong — ASEAN Economic Cooperation Foundation. Earlier he also served as a
part-time member of the Central Policy Unit, and a member of the Task Force
on Industry Facilitation under the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee, the
Assessment Panel of the Small Entrepreneur Research Assistance Programme
under the Innovation and Technology Fund, the New Business Committee of
the Hong Kong Financial Services Development Council, a non-official member
of Education Bureau School Allocation Committee and the Legal Aid Services
Council.

MREBTREAEREBERERABTNEEZ BB RRBEIFNTEEFREM
BEFEEE  EFIITHREBFRIN - R kBIXCZEEERE  HEH
BABEXRTRENE BARERRREZEEERE  BBUTAZERZ
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BEZEEEE EBREREEERERERD  BAETAEEHLEEEE
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EEEAMAEDARERELTFE - BBIUNKBEESRAREE-RELHE
BFETEER - B RAETRECRAAIFEREER « 855 21 BfRERE
AAEEE NTREESE/IVEERES A RRIRES N TEENTER S
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Board Members EEEKE

——

Philip CHAN Ching-ho, BBS
BRIESE , BBS
Deputy President and Provost of

The Hong Kong Polytechnic University
BEBETAREEBREFIRE

Professor Chan is the Deputy President and Provost of The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical Engineering from
University of California at Davis, and Master of Science and Doctor of Philosophy
degrees in Electrical Engineering from University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign
(UIUC). He taught at UIUC and then joined Intel Corporation.

Professor Chan joined The Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in
1991 as a founding member. He is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institution of Engineering
(HKIE), Institute of Electrical and Electronic Engineers (IEEE) and Hong Kong
Academy of Engineering Sciences (HKAES).

Professor Chan was a director of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (ASTRI), and Chairman of the Technology
Committee. He is a non-official member of the Committee on Innovation,
Technology and Re-industralisation.

He received the Bronze Bauhinia Star from the HKSAR Government in 2013.
BREFRRASAET REREFAEFRIRE o T EBIINMN K BE 4T REL
SEMTRZIESTE > Ml EERBFENEAZMNEIEREDREGER TE
BEETRFSE T2 ERZRER > HRINARSBEAR LE

BB 19N EMAT BRI AE » HRREIRKE - thEE B TIZM2 gk
T BRKBEFEIEMBESERIREBILENEE KL -

RER B ABBRANMEMARBRATZEERFHZEEGEF © AR
R KRBIXRECEEEIFELEES -

BREUR 2013 R BRI THER BT REIEFES -

—

CHEUK Wing-hing, Jp
Sk, op

Permanent Secretary for

Innovation & Technology

R M EENER

Mr Cheuk Wing-hing has served in various bureaux and departments. He was
Director of Food and Environmental Hygiene from 2007 to 2010, Commissioner for
Labour from 2010 to 2014 and Director of Administration and Development in the
Department of Justice from 2014 to 2015. He was appointed Permanent Secretary
for Innovation and Technology in November 2015.

KB BIE ZERER B R EBPIARTS © i 2007 = 2010 EHEBYI MIRIE
BEEEE 2010E 2014 FHEFETERE > K 2014 F 2015 FEHEREE
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Duncan CHIU
BRiEIR

Managing Director of
Radiant Venture Capital
LREAERATESRCE

With over 20 years of investment and M&A experience in the Greater China
region, and several IPOs in the Hong Kong and Shenzhen Stock Exchanges, Mr
Duncan Chiu founded Radiant Venture Capital (Radiant) in 2014 to focus in early-
stage investments into technology start-ups. Since then, Radiant has already
invested into more than 30 start-up companies in the Mainland China, United
States, Israel and Hong Kong. He regularly participates and speaks at technology
forums and conferences to promote start-up culture in Hong Kong and also helps
young entrepreneurs with business plan workshops and mentorship. Mr Chiu is
enthusiastic at information technology as well as social and community related
affairs. He is currently the President of the Hong Kong Information Technology
Joint Council (HKITJC), Director of the Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology
Research Institute Company Limited (ASTRI) and Standing Committee Member of
Shenzhen Association for Science & Technology.

B A20F » BERFEEFEINAPEMENRENFRIEE - 2RKEZH
MESERE  ERAMRSCRET BB AR SR ARYIESF RSP L < 2014
Fo MR ERELS  TEREFEAM X « UEHEBZ AR
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EEEARKMEER « BBRANEMERBRABDESE ARYITHRIERM
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Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching, JP
8qER, P
Partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers

BB EESHEHIEBA

Mr Humphrey Choi is PwC's China, Hong Kong and Asia Pacific Assurance Leader
and a core member of PwC's Global Assurance Leadership Team. He is a member
of PwC's China and Hong Kong's Management Board and a member of PwC China,
Hong Kong, Singapore and Taiwan's Executive Board.

Mr Choi has years of audit and advisory experience, and works with a wide range
of international and local clients. He has tremendous experience in helping
companies list on the Hong Kong and overseas stock exchanges. Over the years,
he has also played key leadership roles as the Hong Kong Markets Leader, China
and Hong Kong Middle Market Leader, a member of the Global Middle Market
Leadership Team and a member of the China and Hong Kong's Board of Partners.

Mr Choi is currently a member of the Administrative Appeals Board and a Director
of Hong Kong Applied Science and Technology Research Institute Company Limited
(ASTRI).
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Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
8BE

Partner of CW CPA
EREFIEBEBA

Ms Rosanna Choi, Certified Public Accountant, is a founding partner of CW CPA.
She chairs the firm's Technical Committee and IT Committee.

Ms Chai is a Past Chairperson of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
(ACCA) Hong Kong branch, and has served on the ACCA Council (global) since the
2011/12 financial year. She has also been the Chairperson of ACCA’s Global Forum
for SMEs since 2013.

Ms Choi is an executive committee member of Social Ventures Hong Kong and an
audit committee member of Urban Renewal Authority. Appointed by the HKSAR
Government, she has been a member of the Business Facilitation Advisory
Committee since 2013 and a member of Board of Inland Revenue since 2015. She
was also a council member of the Hong Kong Baptist University from 2011 to 2016,
and the Deputy Chairperson of its Finance Committee from 2013 to 2016.

ERERLLAHPFEAMAEBRSHMEBRRIMA > TEZFINRTEES
MEMMREZEGEF °
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R2013FESEFTREBNEZEIA S BEMEHEEEERE » 2015F%F
AMBEEFTEES - W20 EN06FEREEEAIEAZREGHE » BN
2013ZE 2016 FEHEZAREMHRZEGRIEE ©

LAU Chun-kong
T

International Director of

Jones Lang LaSalle Limited

hEBTERES

Mr C K Lau is an International Director of Jones Lang LaSalle Limited and is
responsible for the Asia valuation and advisory business of the firm. He is a
chartered surveyor and a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors. Mr Lau
has a wide breath of experience in property valuation, real estate consultancy and
investment sales market.

Mr Lau is a member of the Land and Development Advisory Committee,
Administrative Appeals Board and the REIT Committee of Securities and Futures
Commission.
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Edwin LEE Kan-hing

FiRE

Founder and CEO of Bridgeway Prime

Shop Fund Management Limited
REmBESEIEERAR
BB AR ATEAB R,

Bridgeway Group was established by Dr Edwin Lee in 2001 as a business broker
and builder. In 2015, Dr Lee transformed it into Hong Kong's first SFC-licensed asset
management company, with primary focus on shop investment and development,
including type 1 (Dealing with securities), type 4 (Advising on securities) and type
9 (Asset management) regular activities licenses. Dr Lee is a Chartered Financial
Analyst and a Certified Business Intermediary, and received his Bachelor of Science
in Finance and Master of Science in Accounting from the University of Southern
California as well as a Doctor of Business Administration at The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University with a focus in entrepreneurship. In 2014, he completed the
Owner/President Management Programme at Harvard Business School. Bridgeway
and Dr Lee were featured twice as case studies by The University of Hong Kong,
listed under Harvard Business Review in 2010 and 2012 respectively.
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—

Gregg G. LI Ka-lok

Feg
(Appointed on 5 June 2017)

(12201766 B5HEZ1T)

Dr Gregg Li has been an innovation evangelist, a serial entrepreneur, and a
governance adviser for over 35 years. Today, he serves as the President of
Invotech, seeking innovative ways to reinvent the ecosystems of Hong Kong.

He is an advisor to the Business and Professionals Federation of Hong Kong; the
Center of Family Business at The Chinese University of Hong Kong; and the School
of Design of The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is @ member of the Board of
the Urban Renewal Authority.

Dr Li graduated from Washington University in St. Louis (Liberal Arts), University
of Hawaii in Economics (MA), The University of California, Los Angeles (MBA), and
University of Warwick (Engineering Doctorate).

He teaches courses in strategy, innovation and corporate governance in many
universities as a visiting professor and has received an Honorary Professor of
Practice in Governance from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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LING Kar-kan, SBS

ERED, sBs
(Appointed on 5 June 2017)

(FR201756 A5 HERMT)

Professor K K Ling is a professional town planner with extensive practical
experience and was the Director of Planning of the HKSAR Government from 2012
to 2016.

Professor Ling is a Fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Planners (FHKIP), a Registered
Professional Planner (RPP) and possesses People’s Republic of China Registered
Urban Planner Qualification. He was the President of Hong Kong Institute of
Planners from 2007 to 2009.

After retiring from the post of Director of Planning in November 2016, he was
appointed the Honorary Professor, Adjunct Professor and Professor of Practice
(Planning) respectively by The University of Hong Kong, The Chinese University of
Hong Kong and The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.
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Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
BTG

Managing Director of

Firedog Creative Company Limited
WARIBARABEHBEIE

Mr Gabriel Pang is the Founder and the Managing Director of Firedog Creative
Company Limited and has more than 18 years of experience in IT and creative
industries. Mr Pang founded the famous game company “Firedog Studio” in 1999,
and is one of the pioneers in Hong Kong game development.

Mr Pang's major public services includes the Chairman of Hong Kong Digital
Entertainment Association since 2008, Board member of Hong Kong Education
City Limited, Director of Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited,
Vice Chairman of Hong Kong Software Industry Association, committee member
of Commission on Youth, committee member of Hong Kong-Taiwan Cultural
Co-operation Committee, member of Exchanges with Taiwan Funding Scheme
Assessment Committee and member of Innovation and Technology Fund's
Enterprise Support Scheme Assessment Panel.
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Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
=ERE

Mr Alfred Wong was the Chief Technology Officer and Head of Information
Technology Division of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited (HKEx) since
April 2004 until he retired in September 2010. Earlier in his career, Mr Wong had
held several other senior IT positions at the HKEx and the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong since rejoining the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong in November 1992.
Mr Wong was a project leader at the Australian Stock Exchange and a consultant
application engineer at Australia's Westpac Banking Corporation between 1987 and
1992.
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Rosana WONG Wai-man
BEE

Executive Director of

Yau Lee Holdings Limited
BHERBRATMITES
(Appointed on 5 June 2017)
(7R2017F6 B5HEZRE)

Ms Rosana Wong, Executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited, leads the green
integrated corporation to develop and build a smarter and more sustainable
ecosystem by fostering and adopting technology, innovation and science through
exponential research and development in this dynamic community.

Ms Wong is also a Vice President of Smart City Consortium and the Chairperson
of its Smart Living Committee, Member of the Environment and Conservation
Fund Committee of the HKSAR Government, Council Member of The Better Hong
Kong Foundation, Member of The Zonta Club, Exponential Advisory Board Member
of Singularity University, Board Member of Virtual Builder and Advisory Board
Member of Center for Integrated Facility Engineering (CIFE) at Stanford University.

Ms Wong holds a Bachelor Degree in Design from the De Montfort University, a
Master Degree in Design from the Royal College of Art in the UK, and Executive
Master Degree in Business Administration, Master Degree in Philosophy both
awarded by The Chinese University of Hong Kong and an executive programme in
technology from the Singularity University in the US.
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Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun
L E
Commercial Director of

MTR Corporation Limited
HEEERERAB R

Ms Jeny Yeung is the Commercial Director and a Member of the Executive
Directorate of MTR Corporation Limited. Ms Yeung is a Fellow of The Chartered
Institute of Marketing and The Chartered Institute of Logistics and Transport.

Ms Yeung is a member of the Hong Kong Tourism Board. She is also a member of
the Marketing Management Committee of The Hong Kong Management Association,
the Advisory Committee on Enhancing Self-Reliance through District Partnership
Programme of Home Affairs Department of the HKSAR Government and the
Infrastructure Development Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development
Council.

Ms Yeung is also a Co-Chairman of the Corporate and Employee Contribution
Programme Organising Committee of The Community Chest.
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Douglas SO Cheung-tak
BuE
(Retired on 4 June 2017)
(20176 B4 BIB1E)

Mr Douglas So is a solicitor of Hong Kong.

Mr So is the founder and director of F11 Foto Museum and f22 foto space in Hong
Kong. He was formerly Vice-President and Pro-Vice-Chancellor of The University of
Hong Kong in charge of institutional advancement.

Mr So is the Secretary of the Hong Kong Committee for UNICEF; a board member
of M Plus Collections Limited; a member of the Antiquities Advisory Board; Advisory
Committee on Built Heritage Conservation and Museum Advisory Committee;
amongst others.
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B ESUNIBYIEEHEZEENMES
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Retired Board Members (continued) BiB{FZEEREKE (&)

Peter YAN King-shun

R4S

Executive Director and Chief Executive
Officer of SUNeVision Holdings Limited
TEEEEERATNNTESR
TR

(Retired on 4 June 2017)
(1R2017F6 A4 HIRIE)

Mr Peter Yan is the Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of SUNeVision
Holdings Limited, where he is responsible for the group’s overall business
operations, including Data Centres, SMATV, Network and Connectivity services.

Mr Yan has over 31 years of experience in the information technology industry
and has extensive experience in public services. Mr Yan is also a Director of the
Hong Kong Data Centre Association Limited, Chairman of the Advisory Committee
for the Master of Science Program in Information and Technology Management of
The Chinese University of Hong Kong, member of the Computer Science Advisory
Committee of The University of Hong Kong, member of the Advisory Committee
of the Information Systems Department of the City University of Hong Kong, and
member of the Information & Communications Technology (ICT) Services Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council.

Mr Yan is an Honorary Advisor and Life-time Fellow of the Hong Kong Computer
Society. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from The Chinese
University of Hong Kong and received Executive Education for Global Leadership
from the Harvard Business School.

ERERERTNEPERERADATEFTRTHBH - EEZEENHE
b~ MEBRREIBEES -

EREAENRRESEEAENFER > RAKRB I ETEEEEER -
FRERDBBHETOHBEERLBES - BT XAREN LI EER
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B2 E2EEEZE N ERERESERRAENKEINERFEEZES
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EREABBERBELEEMRRBEREE - BENEBPXAETH
BB > WL H R RITIEBR KA TEEE ©
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Corporate Information
KAFEH

Address
Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited

Units 1102-1104, Level 11, Cyberport 2,
100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3166 3800

Fax: (852) 3166 3118

Email: enquiry@cyberport.hk

Website: www.cyberport.hk

Shanghai Representative Office

Unit 204B, 2/F, 1 KIC, KIC Plaza, 234 Songhu Road,
Yangpu District, Shanghai, PRC

Tel: (86-21) 5512 2815

Fax: (86-21) 5512 2816

Guangzhou Representative Office

Unit 101, GRG Science and Technology Building,
No. 163 Pingyun Road, Huangpu Avenue West,
Tianhe District, Guangzhou, PRC

Tel: (86-20) 3869 5390

Fax: (86-20) 3869 5390

Auditor

Ernst & Young

Principal Bankers

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Solicitors

Mayer Brown JSM

Company Secretary

Pagan WONG
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SRS B2EE 11 1211021104
EE5% - (852) 3166 3800

55 : (852) 3166 3118
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481 © www.cyberport.hk
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Corporate Structure
YAGIE

Board of Directors

EER

Executive Committee Macro Fund Investment

BTEREY

Audit Committee
#HitZEg

Entrepreneurship
Committee

TEFREEST

Chief Executive Officer

1T RARE

Committee
BIEER R
HE:ZEg

Remuneration
Committee

=SS

Chief Operating Officer
SiEEE

Chief Corporate
Development Officer

EERRAE

Chief Financial Officer
and Company Secretary

MBEERATME

Chief Public Mission Officer
ATEmAAE

Chief Investment Officer

RBRAE

Head of
Leasing & Sales

B RHEDEE

Head of
Campus Management

RREEEESEE

Head of
Technical Services

BETEDBEE

Head of Corporate Marketing
and Communications

XS RENNEE

General Manager of
Le Méridien Cyberport
HIEAEEERRE

Head of Human Resources

and Administration

ANEERATHEE
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Management Team
B2 E X

Head of Campus Management
LANDY HUNG

Bk EEEEREE
HEA

Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary

PAGAN WONG
MRS ARWE
HRE

Head of Technical Services

BETREIIE

Head of Leasing & Sales
CHRIS HUI

AR HENTE
#

Chief Executive Officer
HERMAN LAM
1THURE

s
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Chief Public Mission Officer General Manager of Head of Human Resources & Administration Chief Corporate Development Officer
TOA CHARM Le Méridien Cyberport JENNY CHUA MARIA LAM
ATFAEDHRE STEPHANE MASSE ANERRITHEHEE TEREE
ERE RSB KB EARLIE 23y iR
EBX

Chief Operating Officer Mr Mark Clift passed away on 16 July 2017. A core member of the Cyberport team since 2003, Mark

MARK O. CLIFT was indispensable to building Cyberport’s vibrant innovative ecosystem.

BiEEE ESCELER 2017 46 73 16 BEHERR - e 2003 SFAEIABEEE - BULRAEB B RAR

iy BEGEOME » HITEBIE 57 RO AR S -

(1964 - 2017)
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Enabling young
innovators to kickstart
and develop digital careers

Bnfr—CEIFR A A RS
REEE S

Enriching
Hong Kong’s youth with
STEM and experiential
activities

EBSTEMB & R Ak
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Inspire the
Next Generation
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Inspire the Next Generation
B S h—CRIFR B 4

Fuelling Hong Kong with digital technology innovation and synergising
the digital ecosystem in the city is one of Cyberport’s key aims. Our teams
work collaboratively to achieve these goals, and we start this process by
engaging the city’'s most energetic segment - the youth. They have the
drive, passion, ability, and are eager to learn. Combined with support from
technology institutions, entrepreneurship support, and opportunities for
mentorship, young people and aspiring digital technology entrepreneurs
have the ability to develop their potential and help Hong Kong develop its
digital initiatives.

Cyberport is intent on fostering and empowering the city's next generation
of digital technology talent for the world of tomorrow. Our comprehensive
youth efforts target at inspiring young talent from an early age, exposing
them to digital innovation, and helping them embark on a career in
technology, or in kick-starting their entrepreneurial journey.

2 0 1T 35 3% W € 2016

:‘_

-
=
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Education and technology

STEM education is an effective way to inspire primary and secondary
students about technology and hone their problem-solving and digital
skills. It received strong support in both the 2016 and 2017 Policy Address
when the government provisioned new funding to schools. Many financial
institutions and professional firms are actively seeking STEM scholars to
join their ranks to embrace digital transformation and a new era of work.

HIEBENABEBIABBRKAINE
RACEHIERERE - HAIBE—0 > &
ZERES - (LR3It LRAEHH—
BE-F5 ARG BEMMANES - B
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P EFAEM AR E R LA E
IR RLAE o

HERRE

STEM¥ B B BB EE /N2 L 58 s S s Rl
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20162017 F R &5 > BUTIB SR
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To meet the demand for STEM training and talent, Cyberport boosted its
STEM and coding programmes. Highlights of 2016/17 included the Inter-
School IT Elite Challenge 2016, in which over 1,800 students joined to
pass through STEM checkpoints by coding, building robots, and setting up
networks; and the Student Formula Coding Competition, in which around
370 students joined to learn about Internet of Things (loT) and coding
e-vehicles.

We have also added more STEM elements to our school visits. Tours to
Cyberport now include visit to the IngDan Hong Kong Experience Centre,
which was opened in 2016, showcasing loT innovations from Mainland
China and Hong Kong, including those from Cyberport start-ups. We are
also working with schools to design workshops based on their needs
and interests, such as 3D printing, coding, and virtual reality (VR), to let
students experience the latest innovation and technology.

TE2016/174EE > A5 B IN5ASTEM K 4R 12
EE) 0 LB S EHSTEMEE IR AA RIS
Koo HhEFEMPRITH BB E2016] 0 &
BR800 2420 » tfiEBESR
BASTEMB RN E BRNARTE ~ i A BER
IS - BN IR BEREI BB
BREFHEENE > THRBLZENYEL
K 4RIZEFATEIR(EBEE ©

HIEBNERSEEFMAESSTEMT
% BEIGBR016FRRENEEE B
ERfE ) > SUSREIRMt ~ BARMEEEER
X BRI ERIF R - HFITCRE
ERERHNER - —FRTEY > B2
EREERRMBVRIFR 5L o BIUNSDITED ~ 4R
RRERBIRRME

Advancing capacity building

For university students who want to receive advanced training or to pursue
a career in technology or even to set up a digital business, Cyberport offers
a series of capacity building initiatives. In 2016/17, we organised a series
of hackathons, such as the BitwiseHacks FinTech Hackathon Series and
Global Game Jam, to allow participants to compete in coding, pitching,
and FinTech solutions. These activities are excellent for students to show
their talent and enhance their problem solving, collaborative, and business
building skills.

HEF TR E

HIEBABSREARMKEXNERRS
BIRITERIVACENABZARET
—RYIBMA RS > RAMMIBNIEES ©
R2016/1TFEE » HMERTERREES
I AR SE ) > 6 40 T BitwiseHacks FinTech
Hackathon | 5! 52 [ Global Game Jam ] » &
2MELEHARNREE « EHERIT RS/
BHE > MUILERAE  BFAMIIRE
WHIEFBIZEMIRES] ©
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Inspire the Next Generation
BB —XRItr B4

:e;:nwa SCHOOL OP

 SNIGHT MANAGEMENT c:ggf INESS
ANFORD UNIVERSITY

B T — e

We ran the second edition of the Cyberport University Partnership
Programme (CUPP) for students with FinTech aspirations to receive
premium training. 20 teams nominated by 6 local universities, comprising
65 students, joined the programme. In total, 53 of the students took their
FinTech projects to the US for a week-long FinTech entrepreneurship
bootcamp at the Stanford Graduate School of Business. In addition to the
trip, the students received various pre-camp training from our industry
partners, where they learnt about the latest industry development and pain
points. These representatives came from organisations such as the Hong
Kong Computer Society, Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and Hong Kong
Association of Online Brokers Limited, and consulting firms such as Ernst &
Young, KPMG and PricewaterhouseCoopers.

University Partners

KEBLERH

HPIEEE —FRRIENEE - K2
58 BASEEREHL LERMAS

G1F%

X EEE - 2H58IF20EB M
65 BAE » MOFEAMKRBGIERHIES
EPARBUELEEHEEEAEBEERS
M7 #E—E2NERERAIZEIIRK
TEHTRAKAIZEIER - HMN5REIg
Mo EETBINERBHIT T BEEY
B2 MESREI > T HRTERWER
KL o SFraastE| E’J%ﬁr%ﬁﬁ@%é‘}%
BKEE EBRTRERE B! Iﬂti%i
WEERAT > L{&??%EEF'WD#R
EMEBPN - 2ERG SN EH KRB
KB SHENEFSFT ©

i e

Phees £ Tipasse L nivessiby ol Flong; Koo
Wy

— K B
THE USIVERSTTY OF IONE KNG

HII!I"'H

)
——

o

36 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report



Cyberport Start-up
BISEMRIER

Snapask was still an idea when we first joined the Cyberport Incubation
Programme. We truly appreciate Cyberport’s talent recruitment support and
advice, which has enabled us to expand to other regions within half a year of our
launch. Today we are serving 350,000 students across Hong Kong, Malaysia,
Singapore, Taiwan, Indonesia, Japan and Korea, redefining the way they learn.

TENIA BH5BIE B 51857 > Snapaskii@—EkEHE o EFi+53 5

snapask

Providing 350,000 students with instant
access to tutor support. All they need
to do is snap a picture of the question
at hand.

#3SBUSERMANGSEEE - B
RIBIBEBES ERHRE - AT
HER o

Cyberport also offered internship placements with the Cyberport Digital
Tech Internship Programme, connecting technology companies and start-
ups to some 71 internship opportunities in Hong Kong, Mainland China,
and the US. Locally, there is the e+startup Internship Programme, through
which students can work with the founders of Cyberport start-ups, while
the eHealth Record Internship Programme enabled students to learn about
health informatics in Hong Kong.

Elsewhere, internship placements are offered in Mainland China; with
companies including Microsoft, Cisco, Ctrip, and UnionPay; and in Silicon
Valley at prestigious accelerators like 500 Startups, as well as Plug and
Play. Hundreds of applications were received in 2016/17 for the Silicon
Valley and Shanghai placements competing for 32 spots, a clear indication
of strong interest amongst students. Overall, Cyberport is making a real
difference in the lives of young people.

BIEETEANS B LIERIBBIRER - SRFATIUTEFEHL
FEFF R - IBEFHRERMAME - SXEFIHIET
BIBMHEE - BARAE Ak - &% - FIfE « HER
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-
u "‘

Timothy Yu R{h5#
Founder B3
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SEERE > fINEFERMNEEE
EME s BRZAA - EREAKIEH ; &
SNE BB EEWAE R INERSE500
Startups ] & 'Plug and Play ° f22016/174
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NEZEF > FENEEZIHR S » k2
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Inspire the Next Generation
BB —XRItr B4

To showcase career prospects and work opportunities, Cyberport co-hosted ATERBTES KT E#S > SHEEHE
the Career Fair with the Office of the Government Chief Information Officer — B & AR X 4B B A T B & SR 1 T 8h%
and matched youths with start-ups and technology companies. The one-  EBEZEEE | > EEHPAILZEMBFEAE
day event attracted a record of more than 3,500 visitors and featured more B2 F A o S8 E BIIR (L 818 50018 2 B
than 500 full-time and internship openings. Key executives from Google and & EZ > R3] T #3500 KEE - &
Microsoft also came to talk under the theme of “IT - You Study, We Hire!” HST R mEnE S IR 2R A NT —REE »
and invited students to join the industry. HAEUEZTESZE BEIBER G EHIE
BwiTE -

Cyberport Career Fair
L FIE L]

For those who wish to take their digital venture further, Cyberport provides ~ ¥R EE— S BRI R X EENES
comprehensive entrepreneurship programmes and early-stage funding A » P IERE 2T 8UEEA =Z M A E
via its signature programme, the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund (CCMF), T IIRHEEEAIESE BFrES RS
to help start-ups turn ideas into prototypes and provide entrepreneurial ~ EBE ¥ a2 DA Z R FERENE RS
training. CCMF received a record of over 580 applications in 2016/17 and ~ TY o |th5+8I7 2016/ 17 E R RS0 IR AT

accumulated a total of 309 CCMF projects as of 31 March 2017. $REREE o B E 201743831 » Z%EHEIE
RETZF T 309E SE BRI BMELE S IR
B o
Cyberport Start-up We were just fresh out of university when we
HEBAEITEE founded EventXtra. Joining Cyberport allowed us

to connect with great start-ups, fantastic investors,
and attract terrific talents, and we could not be
what we are today without Cyberport’s support,
partnership, and connections.

EventXt rqg BITzEventXtraBs » IS E—HMIBEEIA S

BEIHYEBE 5 S5 EER I EEEF BT
¥ AR EERIRSIHRBIAT ;5 RE
Seamless and interactive event BRI - RETFRH REHME » R

management platform for optimal cost B S XHIEventXtra o
efficiency and attendee engagement.

g EESIVISEIETE » IRITR

AR HEESIE N Sum Wong %%B%
CEO and Co-Founder 1T {483 BB S RI A
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Cyberport Start-up
BISBRIER

GOGOVAN is very grateful for all the help we have received from Cyberport, which
has always been supportive of start-ups in Hong Kong. Here, you can get all kinds of

useful start-up related information, and Cyberport creates a healthy ecosystem for

local start-ups to grow as well as a tech-friendly environment for network building.

GOGOVAN+53 B 1S IB B TE & S EIRIEEE) - —E LA KRBT B 025 EBEIHIRIE
RIGHEAAISESF o THIEHE » BRI LB HGEIB FEEIIRIE ¥ EA o

GOGO

tE— AR R E0IRE

Co-Founder & CEO Bt & BII5# A\ FRATEARS,

Revolutionising transport and logistics
with its 180,000 drivers in Hong Kong
and across Asia.

BREBRETNNISE LB -
TBIRB R MERIRRAL ©

Promising Outcomes

Cyberport's youth initiatives have made a mark as well. Many CUPP
participants have taken part in Cyberport's programmes and activities,
such as internships, entrepreneurial programmes, workshops, training,
and hackathons. Participants have also invited their friends to events and
propagated an innovative and start-up spirit among the new generation.

Cyberport has also accumulated a strong following of past event
participants and alumni from entrepreneurship and internship programmes.
These individuals have been profoundly influenced by digital innovation and
start-up culture, and they continue to stay engaged with Cyberport's news
and events. Some maintain long-term friendships and lend one another
mutual support, partnership, and share industry news and information.
Others, such as past grantees and incubatees, have decided to pay their
good fortune forward by offering assistance to new generations of digital
innovators and like-minded individuals, allowing them to be involved in this
incredible digital technology ecosystem.

This inclusive suite of offerings and community is one of the reasons
students, educators, and youth organisations favour Cyberport as a
partner in nurturing young entrepreneurial aspirations. Cyberport seeks
to provide the most comprehensive and fertile environment to inspire and
prepare our youth for a digital future, and continue to offer support through
entrepreneurship and partner programmes.

MBI T — AR FEIEIRI EACIRYE - RIMAIEIE AR -
) BRIEFEIRRFEFEATHE

Steven Lam ##8/li5
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Let Ideas Shine

REIRE RS Pitching Training
Hmalllik
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Financial Assistance

MiERiE Cyberport News

Market Exposure
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Accelerating start-up
development with
enablement programmes
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Reaching out to investors and
corporate partners to drive deal
flow and adoption
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Ideas to Grow
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Nurture and Scale-up

Entrepreneurs
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Nurture and Scale-up Entrepreneurs

HIERSREN FHEREER

In 2016/17, we witnessed a strong inflow of start-ups to Cyberport's
programmes, a reflection of the passionate interest in digital
entrepreneurship and innovation in Hong Kong. We also observed a stream
of mature start-ups achieving market success and gaining international
recognition. These accomplishments were made possible as a result of our
assistance along their entrepreneurial journey, supportive government
initiatives, and ever-more creative innovators joining the ranks of digital
entrepreneurship.

We know that the best ideas must be connected to markets and investment,
and in this spirit, Cyberport bolstered its entrepreneurial support in
2016/17. We dedicated more resources to start-ups, enhancing their market
and investment readiness. From previously providing enablement training
to Cyberport’s start-ups only, we have now expanded our enablement
programme to all digital technology companies in our community, including
Smart-Space companies, providing them with all-rounded support to
succeed in the business. These services address varying needs from
intensive training for younger start-ups to structured investor meetings for
mature start-ups.

Cyberport Start-up
LR 20)) I

Smart-Space where we can meet more like-minded

digital start-ups.

HFIHI LT B RGBS B St BIRYSZ 17 o
BBFE B i 2A5 £ RYSmart-Spacet
TEZER] - fEAPEEZPIsRaat EIE

W DRAGON LAW

BEESHIHIEHIEILE -

15,000 businesses trust Dragon Law
for its cloud-based legal software
platform.

15,000/EA Bl ZE4Z(548Dragon LawHy
IR AEEEFS ©

We have benefited from the support of the Cyberport
Incubation Programme. We have now moved into the

Daniel Walker
CEO1TIARE:
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Cyberport Start-up
£SO F: 201) Mo S

If HKUST was where our team and ORIl were born, then Cyberport was where our
concept became a reality. Apart from the comprehensive services and great publicity

support, Cyberport, a responsive and impactful partner, lined us up with some of

our best partnerships and investment opportunities. We look forward
to giving back to the Cyberport community and fostering a spirit of
generosity by sharing what we have learned from this powerful

" N
=

orig

platform.

QM

LABS

Turning fingers into phones with bone
conduction technology for seamless
and screen-less communication.

BB SEERT - FHEthaEE
BET  EREAE - ERSIEH
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Increase Market Exposure and Deal Flow

Hong Kong start-ups, particularly those focus on business to business
solutions, often lack market access - many of them seek feedback after
prototypes are developed, which delay their time to market. Cyberport
serves as the bridge between start-ups and the industry during their early
phase of development to boost the success rate of their products.

For instance, start-ups in FinTech were connected to industry professionals
to learn about regulations, compliance, and other operational constraints.
This allowed start-ups to fine-tune their ideas and, in certain cases, decide
the best market to promote their solutions.

Cyberport also organised pitching and networking events for investors
to learn about start-ups and for start-ups to reach out to investors, with
excellent results. Origami Labs met the Alibaba Entrepreneurs Fund at
a pitching event, leading to a strategic investment. Appustech, a start-up
offering parking solutions, closed a deal within 6 weeks after meeting its
first investor at an awards celebration party.
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Nurture and Scale-up Entrepreneurs
BIERERRSD FHEERSK
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Training and mentorship =H V- g

With digital technology's rapid development, start-ups in every field need — Z{ERILERESIE » FTEEETIAI B2
to keep abreast of the latest trends. In 2016/17, we launched a partnership ~ EZ2ALEH » INBEEIXB - At > M
with IBM and provided a series of blockchain training sessions covering  12016/17F ERER T HIBMAI S 1F » 1244
Blockchain+ FinTech, Blockchain+ EduTech, and Blockchain+ e-commerce —Z 5| B & R R MR R 0 HEE
solutions. The training guided start-ups to explore cross-sector integration — 1R##E+& IR « BIRE+ AR - BIR
and upgrade their business with up-and-coming technologies, and all  $#+85F g BABRARIARIR A 2 o BRIIEIS]
participants considered the training extremely fruitful. BRI ERRBITERE > EMENE
EZREANRERER  FIE2HENAEY
RTERRS o
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Knowing that some start-ups require targeted investment training, in ~ RFIFIESOTAI R EZEBHEHENIBE
2016/17, we cooperated with the University of California, Berkeley and ~ #53J|| lltt FAIHY2016/17 5 B £2 100N
adapted its investment training programmes for Hong Kong. Experts  KEMMBHRORESIE > SIEEKREFIIF

well-versed in coaching imparted on what venture capitalists and angel & o 512l E FTHIEXRBAKRHHASKE
investors look for in start-ups, and how start-ups can better prepare RREEEENEE > {588l EEN
themselves and successfully obtain funding. AEEBEED  ARERINEREE

Cyberport Start-up
BISBYRIEE

@HEYCOINS

Heycoins

Turning inconvenience to ease. Smart
kiosks turn coins to digital currency,
special offers, and charity donations.

{EMERRG(E o E2AERERG IS -
IR BT A « BEEUE

HE?I:JE o

We have always wanted to join Cyberport
and become a part of this largest start-up
community in Hong Kong, where we have
found mentors, business partners, like-
minded peers, and opportunities. Through
different events, competitions, and
business matching sessions organised by
Cyberport, we have gained so much and
we are certain this supportive community
will continue to help Heycoins create more
social and economic impact in our world.

BF—EHEZNASIEE » ASBIE
ERAZBIL E B —57F » TEEFEEFIHEE T80T - S1ERMF - Bl
BEREIEREEEE o BASIE R TELEE) « EERECHIRE » HifiEn
RZ o g5 & St EC#E7EIHeycoins » BliEE 24t BRASE K m ©

Eddie Rong 257
CEO & Company-Founder H{TEEKRESRIEA
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Nurture and Scale-up Entrepreneurs
BIERERRSD FHEERSK

Cyberport Start-ups Celebration Party 2017

In 2016/17, we doubled up the quota of Cyberport Incubation Programme
and our start-ups achieved a 300% year-on-year funding boost, an
encouraging result of Cyberport’'s connection with investors, investor
training, and support provided to start-ups. The substantial jump in
investment offered a strong endorsement for our start-ups and the success
of the Cyberport Incubation Programme.

We also enriched the CCMF Mentorship Programme by lining up alumni
of the Cyberport Start-up Alumni Association to provide one-on-one,
entrepreneur-to-entrepreneur mentorship to grantees, and invited
entrepreneurs from Mainland China to serve as mentors to share their
experience in a bootcamp.

Cyberport Start-up
BISBAIERE

with great networking opportunities to connect with
potential users, employees, and industry leaders.

BIBBHIIEERFAGHIRIEHE » £ TR
EREIRMHTIE o MIBE— B KZAKLOOKH KT
BB IEAGEETHES « BIR

|< L@ |< BRI E  ;

1T3EEH) -

Eric Gnock Fah EE.E%
President & Co-founder Bt &

Asia’s largest in-destination services
booking platform, allows users to
discover and book travel experiences
at exclusive prices.

DNERABIIRIERSERTRE] T A ; B
RIEFZNERES R TIRER®
1712 °

development stages, Cyberport has been providing Klook

016/17TEETHISBIEB S8 IR ERE
i"‘ c BISENYAI X ERESERTFR
F=(E1RE > NEBA - BEIREREEE
BBRREE  BIIRIENE I RER °
HEARIEERIE R BR T ShTE BB
R FE RS BIE S ERED

MEHE B EMARS MR EIAED
BREE  HBEBRXEE—REXLES
STRIPMTERE—H IR EMRIEE ;
J@L BT R BYBIZE R A A EEN o TERIZE
EDEMFIRVRIZEAEES o

Committed to nurturing and supporting start-ups at different

BB A FRARE,
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Cyberport Start-up
BISBRIER

Relocating from London
to start Lattice with

the famous Cyberport
Incubation Programme

was our conscious decision

lattite

knowledgeable entrepreneur-support team - It made

and we have never regretted it. We soon discovered
a truly empathetic and helpful community and
Cyberport’s dedicated, passionate, and exceptionally

our tough start-up journey much more enjoyable and helped our business to expand

Maximise returns, manage risks, and
support trading decisions for the
wealth management industry with
Lattice's invention: The world's first,
award-winning, View-Driven Portfolio
Optimiser and Robo Advisor.

FHLatticeffi% ~ tHAFHAI M ELE
HER L EREN IR B S B L83 AN AE
15E > A S EIRTERINIGED
iR~ BERR RIS ZREK ©

Intra-ecosystem collaboration

As the Cyberport community grows in diversity, we strengthen
collaboration among community members. It is our aim to bridge both
technology and other professional service companies in our community to
partake in collaboration and drive mutual growth. For instance, TNG Wallet
payment is now offered on all tenant shuttle buses. We also lined up Marks
& Clerk, an IP expert in Cyberport, to offer free initial consultation to start-
ups.

To ensure that Cyberport start-ups receive optimal support as they grow
their businesses, we organise regular review meetings to monitor their
progress and offer tailored support to meet their needs. These include
matching them with relevant business partners at Cyberport's events, as
well as taking them on overseas delegations for business development. All
these initiatives provide the most nourishing environment for start-ups to
quickly grow and go to market.

SRR R L

and evolve. We are determined to stay connected with Cyberport.

LatticeHifR B B E /R - W BHFRBRE MU BIZEE1E] > EFHFI—1E
FREFE BABE EEITRE © BelFIRIAE
BIBBIIRIESRFMZORE « MBI FEM#— < HIEHEER
EEERFHIBIEIRE - hBEBBIHRTEFRZERE » BlfIAEECLAYEE

REiEE—ERC R BB E ;

Wing Cheung 5RIE
CEO1TIRARE:

EEANEERHE

PEEHSERENVAICEHB LTt
HMmaT BetEBMNEESE > K
AR EIER X BB > BeE
BEMILE o FIUIFFISIATNG Walletl93z
5 ARPTEMRAEE F ; BfI7RE
B TEISERL  MRERERAREMS
7 BRI ERERENY S AR o

REERBHENVVRICEESREGENX
BRUBREER » RACHS RAFILIT#
BRIEE > MESFTEERARTEREC S ith
FBER > BEEHSEEBNEETIETR
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Unleashing
Hong Kong’s potential
in FinTech, Big Data/Al,
e-commerce, and loT/Wearables
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Connect Partners

and Global Network

R ER B
WEHHTtXEEEEBRES

Partnering with key players
to springboard start-ups
to success

BERBHEGHE
Bh#EIEERFAIER,



Connect Partners and Global Network
BMEBERBE HETXEREBEES

As our start-ups grow, scaling is the next essential aspect of their journey,
and Cyberport is ready to connect these rising stars to a worldwide
network of partners and investors in Hong Kong, Mainland China, across
Asia, and globally. In 2016/17, Cyberport enhanced its service platforms
and bolstered ecosystems in its major clusters including FinTech, Big
Data/Al, e-commerce and Internet of Things (IoT)/Wearables.

Cyberport is committed to developing Hong Kong's digital economy
while connecting start-ups to new opportunities globally, by working
with governments, enterprises, incubators, or accelerators. We continue
to help our start-ups go global and strengthen our inbound services for
international start-ups as they expand to Hong Kong.

Accelerate Cluster Development

To date, we have brought over 70 partners to our network, adding
accelerator programmes and collaboration opportunities, for we
understand it takes strong ecosystems to grow new industries. FinTech is
one of our key clusters and an area of keen interest. For this reason, we
supported the 12-week SuperCharger FinTech Accelerator programme at
Smart-Space FinTech for FinTech innovators.

PREMIERS A

LYBERPORT

PEESRS BRI LEMNERT LenE > &
AEKIRERRIER LNEZEEM o &
FEEEMRE > IBBIEENBEHZ 2ER
ZHE - BNREBERNEBRBAERRE
& o R2016/17TFE » BEENRFTEEE
e ERNEREERMAE ~ K8/
ATESE ~ BEFHERYEGA/ A FER
BIERREEE o

HISBR RS EBENYIBCEER > I
SN EMER BB ~ B2 ~ EassiniE
o fF BYRIEEDREZINKE - HM
GREREVAIEXERHT > FARAE
HEEBHNHEPAIEFIN®RARE » R3[H
REMARIEERBINREET ©

INEEREHREEN R

RESH  HMEBEZTHBIVESIER
0 5| AT ELINERESET B R H A EE
8o HMARE—ERANERIRIEA AL
EMTEARE EMBEEERMES—
BEREAE > FERMZFAE12280
I'SuperCharger ) BRI INERAZFTE] > :BS
BApY 5 RARHE A B #E Smart-Space FinTechit
BAITEEERE -
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We co-organised the third FinTech Innovation Lab Asia-Pacific with
Accenture, with 8 shortlisted FinTech start-ups from around the world,
including 4 from Cyberport, undergoing a 12-week intensive mentoring
programme. These start-ups were connected to leaders at Bank of
America, Merrill Lynch, Credit Suisse, Goldman Sachs, HSBC, J.P. Morgan,
China Construction Bank (Asia), Standard Chartered, and other financial
institutions.

We organised regular industry events, including a FinTech 020 series
for start-ups, to enhance networking between industry practitioners
and regulators. Cyberport also organised international conferences to
connect Hong Kong's FinTech start-ups and businesses, including hosting
2 dedicated sessions at the prestigious Asian Financial Forum discussing
payments, cybersecurity, and encouraging investment in Hong Kong's
FinTech start-ups. These efforts were augmented by our hosting of a
FinTech session on global FinTech innovation at the 2017 Internet Economy

Summit.
.,E E@ ASTRI
HERRE NG
Global FinTech Innovation

EHEMARNRES
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Connect Partners and Global Network
BMBXSBE BKBCEREERESS

Cyberport Start-up
LU 20)) M

events for start-ups and SMEs. We would also like to
express our appreciation to the Cyberport team for
providing continuous support and valuable feedback

SHOPLINE

B2B e-commerce software platform
that has helped over 80,000 merchants
in Asia to open their online shops.

B2B BFHERMT A > ADillE
BE IR PRI LA o

We worked closely with the government, including the Innovation and
Technology Bureau, the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, and Financial
Services and the Treasury Bureau to drive for new policies in nurturing
the FinTech industry. We also reached an memorandum of understanding
(MoU) with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority, Hong Kong Science and
Technology Parks Corporation, and ASTRI to promote regulatory overhaul
and industry adoption of innovative FinTech solutions. Public education
has also been paramount, with workshops and seminars increasing the
awareness of the public on topics including Blockchain, Cybersecurity,
InsurTech, RegTech, and many more.

Although FinTech is a key focus, other key clusters saw significant
development as well. At the Digital Entrepreneur Leadership Forum,
we showcased Smart Mobility and Smart City solutions, and connected
thought leaders to examine opportunities in Al, Big Data, Internet of Things
(IoT), and Wearables. We joined Lenovo to launch the three-month Lenovo
Accelerator TOP TEN Programme, offering funding, infrastructure, and
business support to Al, Big Data, and Robotics start-ups in Hong Kong and
southern part of Mainland China. Another popular initiative saw IngDan
set up its first Hong Kong Experience Centre at Cyberport to showcase loT
and Wearable products, including those developed by our start-ups, and

accelerate the product launch of their innovations.

Cyberport has done a great job facilitating and hosting
regular industry sharing, workshops, and networking

throughout the various programmes.

UG BTEIERRBINERITERZED « TIESRA
BIEEMFNERITEE LRI E - HE5EE
BB BT AR A ETE T SRR EE
BR > Bt HEEZ UM FIREHNS -

Tony Wong H3&E
Co-founder & CEO HEIAIEARHITE

HPIRBERE S SEERRM AR
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Linking global markets

Cyberport has built a reputation for incubating high quality start-ups; that
is why accelerators favour solutions from the Cyberport community. In
2016/17, two of our start-ups were admitted to 500 Startups, and another
two to Y Combinator. Many others have ventured globally and achieved
market success. TNG Wallet, a Fintech start-up that joined the Cyberport
Incubation Programme and Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme,
spring-boarded into 14 markets. Meanwhile, APrivacy, a Canadian start-
up and Cyberport Smart-Space company offering digital security solutions,
met key financial partners through Cyberport network, and opened up new
markets around the world.

As we cast our focus increasingly on the Asia-Pacific region, we are actively
building connections with accelerators in strategic markets such as Taiwan,
Korea, Singapore, and Malaysia. In 2016/17, for example, we established
connections with Taiwan's PurpleCow Startup Association and AppWorks
to help Hong Kong start-ups enter the Taiwan market. As we explore
global opportunities, a bilateral agreement with Canada’s Ontario Centres
of Excellence was established, to support three Canadian companies soft-
landing in Hong Kong.

Cyberport Start-up
BISBMRIESR

events to gain valuable exposure.

We joined Cyberport to advance APrivacy’s FinTech
aspirations. The dynamic community of Cyberport
connects us to many other start-ups, to socialise with
entrepreneurs and form lasting business contacts.
Smart-Space FinTech is not just spacious and inspiring,
it also enables us to work among FinTech peers and
participate in all kinds of conferences and industry

EE2NThiIS
FISAEE T LEMABEZNEISR A
2 FOIMRBELSHABONEE
HR o 1R2016/17FE > HIEmMEAIE
2 ALIHE 5500 Startups INERES > B YN
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EERARERETS o UEREEAF]
TNG Walletz Bl » I 2 8RS BE S 518K
FISAIMNRBZFAENAE > HERE
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BT HEETEREE > BEBHELEN
M5 o
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A APrivacy BT & s I _E A REMH -
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B EIRYBIZSKES T » BIEU TS
B2 o Smart-Space FinTechTE.2—EAE i %
SRIBIERIM T EVEERPIA N D A BRI
[EESE ; MBETEREXERITE SR HE)

Seamless digital security delivering
multi-channel customer experiences
for the financial services industry.

SIEFR % R 22
BT A SRR TR SRR
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H IR T 12 A o

Founder & CEO B3 \ 81T ERAEE;

RIBHVER

Cédric Jeannot
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Connect Partners and Global Network
BMBXSBE BKBCEREERESS

G uberégff
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mmmmmmmsims-mﬁcf
a community of experts in over 70 count:

Without a doubt, the Mainland China market is always top of mind, FERNMIHRMRIEEMNTE > NLE
particularly with its rapid Internet+ development. Hong Kong's start-ups  [RiEZEXEAYT B B4R+ 5B » BENYAID
must be prepared and equipped to tap opportunities in Mainland China  ZEMNZEREBED > MR AH « BHEE A
markets, the Greater Bay Area, and countries along the One Belt, One Road @& I —#5—B& | 7’&%%.%5’]5’*/%1&@ Fes
initiatives. To this end, we hosted events in Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhento B E * HfIE L& ~ bR EFRYIER T
introduce Hong Kong's start-ups and digital solutions to Mainland Chinese ~ FS/ & » N m%%ﬁ’]%ﬂﬂﬂ:%&%ﬂ%%@}

customers, partners, and investors. FRFHEAMNE R « BHERKES ©
Cyberport Start-up The Cyberport Incubation Programme and Acceleration Programme were crucial
HBISBMAIEE in helping us decipher the right business model and strategy. The programmes

provided us the much-needed exposure to the most senior executives from
business partners, regulators, and investors for us to build our reputation and
grow our footprint - TNG Wallet has benefited immeasurably from the extremely
helpful and experienced Cyberport team, and all the well organised events.

"f“ f? f‘-ﬁj THEEBIEE 5181 R T BE BINE 2RSS B 51 8 Y B FIRE
IR ESEE T RISRIEA o HBIERFISEE
FREBBHENSE « EEHERREE » BHE
1PIRE T A1 5 e H S T R (B — B4 Y (B P

Hong Kong's leading e-Wallet with BB BB L » IERAAS AT
global remittance, bank transfers and 8 > TNG Wallet S25EE:% o

global cash withdrawals, and other
financial functions available 24/7 in 14

markets. .
Alex Kong ;TEER

SBELETEE > BIRERBE Founder & CEO Bl ¥\ F{TIARE,
14{E ™5 o THAEELIE R BREERR ~ 3R

THEIR « 2IKIERRS REMEE

EARRSRARTS ©
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Cyberport Start-up
BISBMRIER

We are very proud to become the first Cyberport Macro Fund investee earlier
this year. Cyberport is known for helping start-ups grow and prosper and has an
outstanding start-up community. The professional support was extraordinary,
and was crucial to the progress we have made. It is an incredibly rewarding
partnership and we look forward to many more years of working together to

make Lynk a truly global brand.

HIIREFER 4 S BIREE
BB BEIREIAE] - #i5
BB AR ERRRE
& 2 WX R B L9781 & miE
& o LynkBIRE R EE BRI EH
ELIREEIER - BIFEE—ME
HEERIBHIRBHF » B HaEa
HIEESIE > HFIELynKELL L
ZIKEHE o

T NA

Democratises access to knowledge,
connecting users to 35,000+ subject
matter experts across nearly 80
countries, for fast and cost-effective
consultations.

B iR 2 T80 ERREIE
35,0008 2R > KREFSERAH
E—EESMRERENERFE o

Expanding investor networks

Investors have been attracted by Cyberport's reputation and its array
of global-facing and market-ready start-ups, which has been both Hong
Kong and Cyberport's niche. They trust and keep the Cyberport’s start-ups
on their radar for top-notch projects. Cyberport's significantly expanded
investors network has contributed to our record deal flow in 2016/17,
including more investment from Mainland China and from prominent
Venture Capitalists, such as IDG and Sequoia. As an example, Klook, which
focuses on Hong Kong, Asia-Pacific, and Mainland China markets attracted
investments from Sequoia.

In 2016/17, we embarked on a partnership with the Hong Kong Business
Angel Network to connect investors and start-ups. We also partnered
the Alibaba Entrepreneurs Fund to launch the Jumpstarter competition,
providing new opportunities for FinTech, Al, Big Data, Internet of Things (loT),
Wearables, and e-commerce start-ups.

Most prominently, our work with institutional investors led to co-investment
in Lynk, which was the first project funded by the Cyberport Macro Fund,
which landed investment from South East Asia and Mainland China.

Connecting You 10
wGrhj-dﬂﬁfn Exp'erts

For on-demand knowiedge, insights and advice

Peggy Choi #2211
Founder & CEO B3 \ FITEAREL
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Connect Partners and Global Network
BMBXSBE BKBCEREERESS

Cyberport Start-up
BISBMAIEE

We were originally investment bankers
with an interest in fashion and an idea for
e-commerce. With the help of Cyberport,
which connected us to industry experts and
business advisors, we were also introduced
to investors such as Alibaba, which took us
into its investment programme.

HFIEZEHERHIRERTH » XHE
FHREBE S - HIEETERFTIEMR
FIEREXFEELOEER - BIEFETI5/
EBRTRPREE » NIMEEE - #XH

YEECHOO

Stay in style with the latest collection

HEEHESERAREN T -

from designer brands through
YEECHOO's rental and sharing
platform.
FEIBYEECHOON ZE KBTS »
RSB RN » LR SA o

Looking Forward

Our momentum has been very strong, and we will not stop. For youth
initiatives, in addition to continuing our across-the-board initiatives in the
coming year, Cyberport will increase its partnership and collaboration with
universities. Plans are already underway to collaborate with The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University, The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology (HKUST), and The University of Hong Kong.

We will offer FinTech placement for students enrolled in The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University's undergraduate Financial Technology programme.
We will also provide co-working space to participants of the HKUST's
Entrepreneurship Centre. Students of The University of Hong Kong's Master
of Science in Business Analytics programme will learn from Cyberport's
start-ups cases and have the chance to help these entrepreneurs crack
their business challenges.

For budding entrepreneurs, enablement programmes in 2016/17 have
produced remarkable results in enhancing their market- and investment-
readiness. We will continue to enhance our enablement offerings in
2017/18. As Asia Pacific is often the first market for Hong Kong's start-
ups to expand into, we shall step up our Asia Pacific support in our
programmes. Other areas of special interest include Al and Blockchain
knowledge sharing, and the list will get longer as we aim to assist
entrepreneurs along every step of their journey.

Shan Shan EHj
Abby Zhang 3R3kR5
Co-founder Bt & AIZA A
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In 2017/18, we will also engage even more partners to bolster our services
and ecosystem, and organise an increasing number of events to engage
the wider public. The Cyberport Venture Capital Forum and the Cyberport
Investors Network will offer increasing opportunities for our start-ups to
connect with high-quality investors, and for investors to learn more about
Hong Kong's start-ups at Cyberport.

We will extend our expertise in successfully developing our FinTech
cluster to other key initiatives as well. The multi-pronged engagement
of industry, enterprises, regulators, public, and global partners has
yielded extraordinary results for FinTech. We will strive to accelerate our
ecosystem development in Al/Big Data, e-commerce, and Internet of Things
(IoT)/Wearables while continuing to build on the solid foundation we have
established for our FinTech start-ups and partners.

To strengthen our inbound and outbound partner services, we will leverage
our international partners to increase access to global markets and scaling
opportunities. Part of this effort will focus on fostering ties with Singapore,
London, and Asia Pacific; and leveraging our resources in Mainland China,
particularly with our Shanghai and Guangzhou representative offices while
exploring further partnerships in Shenzhen and southern part of Mainland
China.

All these efforts are aimed at reinforcing the platform of holistic support
we provide to Hong Kong's start-ups and offering them with the optimal
assistance to pursue their global aspirations. Our role is clear — to combine
the energy of youth with the know-how of entrepreneurs and institutions to
springboard start-ups and digital companies to success, creating outcomes
that empower the emergence of Hong Kong as a major digital technology
hub. Through an array of trainings, competitions, hackathons, accelerators,
forums, conferences, and collaborations with MNCs, start-ups, Venture
Capitalists, and student communities, the synergy is in place to create
boundless achievements for a digital Hong Kong.
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peration Excellence
& S

Ensuring our start-ups springboard to success

Our teams of passionate staff work shoulder to shoulder, striving the
best for the growth of the digital technology and start-up ecosystem.
From the corporate level of assuring stellar corporate governance,
healthy financial and board operations, upholding legal and
administrative compliance to maintaining a high standard of openness
and accountability.

With the dedicated efforts across teams, we have built the recognition
of being an industry's key player. Not only we are a reliable partner
of various industries and public events, meetings and conferences,
our teams are also actively exploring collaboration and investment
opportunities for talented start-ups.

We assist digital technology start-ups and companies in the Cyberport
community with their promotion and technical needs, and support
tenants and campus development. We combine technology elements
with interesting and fun-living activities for the public, bringing
technology to people’s daily life in every possible way.

Cyberport’s dedicated staff maintain top-notch performance to serve
the rapidly growing digital technology community.
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Operation Excellence
HlEiE

A Healthy and Sustainable Campus Environment

Cyberport covers an expansive amount of facilities, and we strive to
provide healthy, sustainable environments to all our users across our
vast campus of over 1,000,000 sq. ft.. The guardians of the campus, our
Campus Management team and our facilities management office, keep our
campus safe and well maintained. Cyberport is a supporter of the “Energy
Saving Charter 2016",
temperature and quality, control the eco-friendliness of materials and

in which we pledge to actively maintain indoor air

solvents used by tenants, and monitor energy consumption across the
Cyberport premise. To this end, we introduced the Intelligent Building
Management System to control air temperature and air flow.

Thanks to the efforts of the Technical Services Team, Cyberport received
industry recognition with Excellent Class awards for all Cyberport office
buildings and The Arcade in the Indoor Air Quality Certificate Award.
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State-of-the-art Facilities

With Cyberport as a reliable industry partner, many organisations and
companies choose our venues to host meetings, conferences, and events,
such as Accenture’s FinTech Innovation Lab Asia-Pacific, Blockchain
Strategies for Business, IngDan i.Future Competition 2016, Lenovo
Accelerator TOP TEN program and Singularity University Master Class.
Cyberport itself also organises many key industry events year-round, often
times conducted across borders and engages people who cannot attend in
person. In 2016/17, we upgraded audio visual facilities in our Conference
& Exhibition Centre, including installing Ultra HD LED display walls for
multi-media display and procured new stage lighting to enhance our
capability to host different functions and events.

Our new Smart-Space FinTech, opened in December 2016, has greatly
enhanced our capacity to serve the growing number of FinTech start-ups
in Hong Kong. The new space of 35,000 sq.ft. has been equipped with the
most advanced AV equipment. These include a new Smart Board and web-
based virtual meeting room for multi-location collaboration, 4K-ready video
infrastructure, and broadcast-grade IPTV, which allows distributing live
content to the entire Cyberport campus and beyond.

Including this new Smart-Space, Cyberport has co-working space of over
122,000 sq. ft. of floor area; a vibrant and innovative environment where
like-minded digital technology entrepreneurs can come together and create
impactful solutions.
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Technology Infrastructure Enablement

Information security and network stability are crucial to technology-related
businesses. In 2016/17, our IT Team upgraded the Cyberport Central Data
Exchange (CDX) to improve the performance, capacity, and reliability of our
underlying facility infrastructure. The renewed CDX is more energy efficient
and resilient against external cyber threats, and adheres to green data
centre practices. Power density has been increased as well, to support the
growing demand from cloud computing and other emerging technologies,
and empower start-ups to grow further and beyond.

In 2016/17, we received a record high number of applications for our
entrepreneurship programmes. To facilitate cross-team collaboration and
ensure efficient application processing, the IT Team deployed an integrated
and streamlined Entrepreneurship Management System where profiles
of applicants can be updated in real time. The system enhances effective
information management, reduces duplicate effort, and enables operational
efficiency. All these help Cyberport to better support its growing community
and start-ups to achieve market success.
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Talent Development

We believe that praise and recognition are essential in a workplace, and
that appreciation is a fundamental need along one'’s career development
path. Every year, our Human Resources Team organises a series of staff
engagement and team-building activities for our colleagues to foster
cross- team collaboration. During the year, with the aim of reinforcing
staff engagement, we organised fun-filled events that gave colleagues
opportunities to show each other recognition, strengthen team spirit, and
build trust for cross- team collaboration.

For example, at an annual team building activity, new members of the
company and existing colleagues joined together to run an imaginary café.
The exercise provided an opportunity for staff engagement, communication,
and showed appreciation to one another. Events such as annual corporate
dinner also gave Cyberport’'s management a chance to thank the colleagues
for their year-round contribution.

Cyberport, as a public body, is committed to the highest possible standards
of openness and accountability. In 2016/17, we also organised a total of
more than 360 hours of trainings and workshops on such varied topics as
compliance, personal data handling, and equal opportunities.
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Community Engagement

Cyberport cares for the community and how society develops, and we take
our corporate citizenship very seriously. In October 2016, for example,
we supported the Christina Noble Children’s Foundation's Family Fun
Movie Day to raise funds for underprivileged children and those at risk of
commercial or sexual exploitation in Vietnam and Mongolia.

We also sponsored the Cornerstone Association's Cornerstone Charity
Walkathon and Carnival, which raised funds for cerebral palsy and disabled
children in Mainland China to provide integrated learning and extend
rehabilitation training. Moreover, CyberRun for Rehab was held for the
13th time at Cyberport. The event aimed to raise money for training and
rehabilitation services to over 4 million disabled children in Hong Kong and
rural Mainland China.
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We also organised various STEM workshops and interactive games day at
the Arcade to inspire the young generation during festive seasons.

In addition to the above, we actively introduced solutions developed by
Cyberport start-ups to the local community through media exposure, event
engagement, and solution showcases within the community. These raised
the public's impression and awareness on how digital technology has been
improving their lives and on the possibility of innovation, making them a
support for digital technology development.
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Corporate
Governance Report

@ %

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(the “Company”), being a limited company incorporated
under the Companies Ordinance, is a private and
wholly-owned company set up by the Government

of the HKSAR via The Financial Secretary Incorporated.
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Corporate Governance Report
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Our Commitment

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance. We believe that good corporate governance provides
the foundation for good corporate performance and is essential to
accomplishing our public missions, meeting the expectations of our
stakeholders and attaining long-term and sustainable growth. We have
therefore adopted accountability, transparency, fairness, ethics and
integrity as the cornerstones of our corporate governance framework.
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The Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) has the overall responsibility for the
leadership, control and performance of the Company. It governs and leads
the Company in a responsible and effective manner. It establishes the
strategic direction of the Company and monitors its performance.

The Company has an effective Board which acts collectively to set the
corporate strategies and approve operating plans proposed by Management.
Each Board Member has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests
of the Company.

To ensure effective discharge of duties by Board Members, the Board
assumes the responsibility of ensuring that each Board Member has spent
sufficient time to attend to the affairs of the Company.
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Board Composition

The Board consists of 14 non-executive Members, including one
Government director and 13 non-Government directors. Non-executive
Directors bring an external perspective, constructively challenge and advise
on proposals on strategy, and monitor the performance of Management.
This structure effectively ensures that the Board would comprise a majority
of independent members and is conducive to maintaining an independent
and objective Board decision making process.

All Board Members are appointed by the shareholders without receiving
any honorarium for a specific term and can be re-appointed upon expiry of
their terms of office.

Board Members come from varied but relevant backgrounds with diverse
skills and experience. While one of them are from the Government, 13
of them come from various business fields, including IT, accounting and
finance, commercial, building construction, surveying, town planning and
academic. Biographical details of the Board Members are set out in the
section titled “Board of Directors” on pages 18 to 27.
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Board Diversity

We recognise the importance of ensuring an appropriate balance of
skills, knowledge, experience and gender on the Board to our corporate
governance. Our Board Members, with diverse backgrounds, have both the
breadth and depth of relevant experience to steer and oversee the business
of the Company, so as to ensure that value is delivered in a sustainable
manner and the Company's interest is protected. The current mix of our
Board Members is balanced and well represented by IT professionals,
business executives, government representatives and other industry
professionals and leaders.

Induction

Each newly appointed Board Member is given a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction programme. The programme consists of meeting
with the Chief Executive Officer ("CEQ") and Management, briefings
on the Company's operations and major developments, and visits to
the Company's facilities. New Board Members are able to familiarise
themselves with the Company's objectives, strategies, business, operations
and internal controls, as well as the general and specific duties of directors.

All Board Members are also given a Directors’ Handbook on their
appointment, which sets out, amongst other things, directors’ duties, code
of conduct, declaration of interests and the Terms of Reference of the
Board Committees. The Directors’ Handbook is updated from time to time

to reflect developments in those areas.

Recognising that development is an ongoing process, Board Members were
invited to attend forums and conferences on information technology in the
year under review.

Board Functions

The Board, chaired by Dr Lee George LAM, directs the management of
the business and affairs of the Company. The overall management of the
Company's business is vested in the Board. The Board has delegated
the day-to-day management of the Company’s business to the Executive
Committee, and focuses its attention on providing overall strategic
guidance to the Company on its business development, finance as well
as oversight over corporate performance and governance. These include
financial statements, significant changes in accounting policies, annual
budget, material contracts and arrangements, strategies for future growth,
major financing arrangements and investments, corporate governance
functions, risk management strategies and treasury policies.

EFRSZRE

RPIRMNDREZTH AR ~ J# -~ £8
MER ST EIERFEE TS - BhEE
ABAER - RFINEFEEMEEEZ T
ENEXER > TRBEZRREER
KERBRENEEARTNES » BERGE
BANBERREARTNMNG - REE
ERMERNESIYE » HBIPRETRE
FRNFEEAER > GREMNKER - BR
THAE ~ BUNAR » UREMITENSE
FANLEEM -

FARR:
EMEZENEZRAETERERZE
EXRFAEMKRITRE S o &5t 818
BHETBEINEEEEHE - 2MARK
AEEENEERRBEANBERE » &2
BARBRE > :BEFHMME T HEER
BRER RS X BE - REE
7 UREEN—RERFERS -

FIEEERNENESRERITEE - (E
=T EPIHT EFHEREBIRT
;B3 EFVEHFRUKREFTZE G
BEE - (EFFM AR ELERENR
HEE AP B3R

HPIRAE RO BT ZUE > BN EIERF
EBFEFRMBHFELZEAREMNRK

BB RS

EERMEEE

EFEEMRXEBLEEERE > EEHAK
NEIZEBNEHERIEHIEE - EFRF
FEaEEEARTMNEBERE » WRER
TEESEEARANHEER > MEF
BRIFEMEFER - UHRBOEALT
REBERELH  FAREERERAER
RBhER > HPEEMBRE EXES
HERENR - FEVHEE E2GOKRE
e~ REREERES - EARMBLHNRE
HE ~ REERTIAE - AREERE KM
BHRSE -

70 Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report



Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman of the Board and CEO are distinct and separate.
The non-executive Chairman is responsible for managing and leading the
Board in setting the Company’s overall directions, strategies and policies,
as well as monitoring the performance of the CEQ. Apart from making sure
that adequate information about the Company's business is provided to the
Board on a timely basis, the Chairman provides leadership for the Board,
and ensures views on all principal and appropriate issues are exchanged
in a timely manner, by encouraging all Board Members to make a full and
effective contribution to the discussion. Under the Chairman’s guidance, all
decisions have reflected the consensus of the Board. The CEO is appointed
by the Board as a remunerated full-time employee of the Company, and
is responsible to the Board for managing the business of the Company.
The roles and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are separate,
enhancing independence and accountability.

Board Proceedings

The Board meets in person regularly, and all Board Members have full
and timely access to relevant information and may take independent
professional advice at the Company's expense, if necessary, in accordance
with the approved procedures.

The schedule of Board and Committee meetings for the following year
is usually fixed by the Company Secretary and agreed by the Chairman,
before being communicated to other Board Members in the third quarter of
each year.

The draft agenda for regular Board meetings is prepared by the Company
Secretary and approved by the Chairman of the Board. Generally, the
agenda together with board papers are sent to all Board Members at least
five working days before the intended date of the Board meeting.

At regular Board meetings, Management reports the Company's
business to the Board, including the Company's operations, progress of
projects, financial performance, legal issues, corporate governance, risk
management, human resources, sustainability, corporate responsibility and
outlook. Together with the discussions at Board meetings, this ensures that
Board Members have a general understanding of the Company's business
and sufficient information to make informed decisions for the benefit of the
Company.

Meeting minutes are sent to Board Members for comment and record
within a reasonable time. Matters to be resolved at Board meetings are
decided by a majority of votes from the Board Members allowed to vote,
although the usual practice is that decisions reflect the consensus of the
Board. The process of the Board is reviewed from time to time to keep
abreast of regulatory changes and best corporate governance practices.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the correct Board
procedures are followed and advises the Board on all corporate governance
matters. All Board Members have access to the advice and services of the
Company Secretary.
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Board Meetings

During the year under review, five Board meetings were held with an
average attendance rate of 77%. Attendance records of individual Board
Members are set out on page 82.

A total of 39 Board papers and 11 sets of written resolutions were
considered or resolved.

Key matters considered/resolved:

Change of new Chairman of the Board

Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan 2017/18-2019/20

Annual Budget 2017/18 and Financial Estimates 2018/19 and
2019/20

Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements

Management accounts and reports

Cyberport Macro Fund ("CMF") Implementation Framework
Membership of Board Committees

Establishment of Cyberport Advisory Panel

Change of External Auditor

Cyberport Image Audit Report

Staff remuneration, pay structure and corporate performance
assessment

Annual pay review

Performance assessment and bonus for Management

Transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance

Apart from Board meetings, the Chairman had sessions with Board
Members without the presence of Management to discuss human resources
matters.

Strategic Planning

The Board has continued to review the strategies of the Company to identify
and assess the opportunities and challenges the Company may face, and
to develop a planned course of action for the Company to generate and
preserve long-term value.

During the year, the direction of Cyberport Three-Year Strategic Plan
2017/18-2019/20 was set so as to continue its public mission to drive Hong
Kong's digital technology development.
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Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Board is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the "Group”), and of the Group's
result and cash flows for the year. In preparing the financial statements for
the year, the Board has adopted appropriate accounting policies and, apart
from those new and amended accounting policies as disclosed in the notes
to the financial statements, has applied them consistently. Judgments and
estimates have been made that are prudent and reasonable.

In support of the above, the financial statements presented to the Board
have been reviewed by Management. Management is responsible for
finalising them with the external auditor and then the Audit Committee.

In addition, all new and amended accounting standards and requirements,
as well as changes in accounting policies adopted by the Group have been
discussed and approved by the Audit Committee before adoption by the
Group.

Board Members acknowledge their responsibilities for ensuring that the
preparation of the annual financial statements of the Group is in accordance
with statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
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Code of Conduct

The Company is fully committed to the principle of honesty, integrity and
fair play in the delivery of products and services to the public.

The Company is a public body under the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance
("POBO"). Accordingly, Board Members are regarded as "public servants”
for the purpose of POBO.

The Board is collectively responsible for the management and operations
of the Company. Board Members, both collectively and individually, are
expected to exercise fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence
to a standard at least commensurate with the standard established by the
laws and regulations of Hong Kong.

Delegating the functions of the Board is permissible but does not absolve
Board Members from their responsibilities or from applying the required
levels if they pay attention to the Company's affairs only at formal
meetings. At @ minimum, Board Members must take an active interest in
the Company’s affairs and obtain a general understanding of the Company's
business.

Board Members should regularly attend and actively participate in Board
and Committee meetings, and prepare for them by reviewing all materials
provided by Management.
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Board Members are required on their first appointment, on an annual
basis, and as and when necessary thereafter to declare any interests that
are or may be relevant and material to the business and operations of the
Company. They are also required to inform the Company Secretary of any
changes in their declared interests or any new interests that may arise
as soon as they become aware of such interests. A Register of Directors’
Interests is kept by the Company Secretary and is accessible by the Board
Members.

Every Board Member is also required to observe his/her ongoing
disclosure obligations (including, without limitation, requirements to
notify changes in personal particulars to the Company Secretary and/
or circumstances that may affect his/her independence, and to declare
material interests, if any, in any transaction, arrangement or contract or a
proposed transaction, arrangement or contract with the Company) under
the Companies Ordinance.

A Board Member cannot cast a vote on any contract, transaction,
arrangement or any other kind of proposal in which he/she has an interest
and which he/she knows is material except with the approval of the Board/
Committees. For this purpose, interests of a person who is connected
with a Board Member (including any of his/her associates) are treated as
the interests of the Board Member himself/herself. A Board Member may
not be included in the quorum for such part of a meeting that relates to a
resolution he/she is not allowed to vote on, but he/she shall be included
in the quorum for all other parts of that meeting. This reduces potential
conflicts which might otherwise arise between the Company's business and
an individual Board Member's other interests or appointments.
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Board Committees

During the year, there are five standing Committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Entrepreneurship Committee, the
Macro Fund Investment Committee and the Remuneration Committee
under the Board. Their Terms of Reference set out the functions,
compositions of members, authorities, duties, frequencies of meetings,
and reporting responsibilities of the Committees. These Committees are
accountable to the Board for their recommendations and decisions. The
Terms of Reference of Board Committees are reviewed from time to time in
the light of the Company's evolving operational, business and development
needs.

The meeting processes of Board Committees follow closely those of the
Board. The interface between the Board and Board Committees are:

All Board Members may attend any Committee meetings as
observers

Board Members are free to access the papers of any Committee
meetings through the Company Secretary

Full minutes of Committee meetings are sent to Board Members for
information

The following sets out details of Board Committees, their memberships (as
of 31 July 2017), principal duties and key matters considered or resolved
during the year.
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Executive Committee

The Executive Committee ("Excom”) is responsible for monitoring the
performance of the Company and ensuring that the Company has been
operating in consistency with the corporate missions and the annual
budget/business plan as approved by the Board.

Membership:  Seven members
Chairman: Dr Lee George LAM

Members: Mr CHEUK Wing-hing
Mr Duncan CHIU
Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
Dr Edwin LEE Kan-hing
Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen
Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Meetings: The Excom convened seven meetings during the year with
an average attendance rate of 83%. A total of 38 Excom
papers were considered or resolved. Attendance records
of individual members are set out on page 82.

Principal duties:
Exercise the functions and responsibilities of the Board between
regular Board meetings
Serve as a sounding board for the Chairman of the Board in the
leadership and oversight of the business and affairs of the Company
Help coordinate the activities among Board Committees
Review and approve the Company's policies
Oversee the Annual Budget
Review and approve the investment strategies of the Company
Monitor the execution of the Company’s strategic plans and the
operations of all business units of the Company
Plan and allocate resources, human, financial and otherwise, for the
execution and implementation of the approved business plans and
corporate development strategies

Key matters considered/resolved:
Development of Cyberport
Annual Budget and Mid-Year Review
Monthly management accounts and reports
Company's policies
Investment strategies and performance of the Company’s investment
portfolio
Strategic cooperative agreements
Material tenders, programmes, projects and contracts
CMF Implementation Framework
Headcount changes
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee ("AC") is responsible for overseeing and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control, risk management system,
regulatory compliance, and the Company's internal audit function. It is

responsible for overseeing the integrity of the Group's financial statements

and the application of financial reporting principles, and the Company's
relationship with the external and internal auditors and their independence
assessments.

Membership:

Chairperson:

Members:

Meetings:

Six members
Ms Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

Mr Duncan CHIU

Mr Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching

Mr LAU Chun-kong

Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Mr Davey CHUNG (government representative)

The AC convened two meetings during the year with an
average attendance rate of 90%. A total of nine AC papers
were considered or resolved. Attendance records of
individual members are set out on page 82.

Principal duties:

Review financial statements

Make recommendations on the appointment of external auditor,
approve its remuneration and terms of engagement, and oversee the
Company’s relations with the external auditor

Review accounting policies

Oversee internal controls, financial controls, risk management
system and internal audit function

Report on matters in relation to corporate governance practices

Key matters considered/resolved:

Annual Audited Financial Statements

External Auditor’'s Report, objectivity and effectiveness of audit
process

Revised and prospective changes to accounting standards

CMF Implementation Framework

Appointment of external auditor and approval of audit fee

Annual corporate governance, risk management and internal control
review

Annual internal audit programme and internal audit reports
Adequacy of resources and effectiveness of the internal audit function
Internal policies and procedures on investment, payment authorisation,
and whistleblowing and grievances
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Entrepreneurship Committee

The Entrepreneurship Committee (“EC") is responsible for overseeing
the administration and management of start-up and entrepreneurship
programmes and events implemented by the Company, such as the
Cyberport Incubation Programme, the Cyberport Creative Micro Fund
("CCMF") and the Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme.

Membership:  Eight members
Chairman: Mr Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Members: Professor Philip CHAN Ching-ho
Dr Edwin LEE Kan-hing
Dr Gregg G. LI Ka-lok
Mr LING Kar-kan
Mr Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit
Ms Rosana WONG Wai-man
Mr Davey CHUNG (government representative)

Meetings: The EC convened four meetings during the year with
an average attendance rate of 65%. A total of seven EC
papers were considered or resolved. Attendance records
of individual members are set out on page 82.

Principal duties:

. Oversee the administration and management of the start-up and
entrepreneurship programmes and events implemented by the
Company
Monitor and review the operational or financial plans and proposals,
administrative matters, business directions and strategies in relation
to the following three aspects:

— Sparking creative ideas through the CCMF Scheme

— Nurturing tech start-ups through the Cyberport Incubation
Programme

— Boosting tech start-ups’ fundraising capability

Approve the appointment and composition of the Entrepreneurship

Committee Advisory Group ("ECAG") which comprises venture

capitalists, business executives, tech industry professionals,

academics, and trade association members

Approve applications for the start-up and entrepreneurship

programmes of the Company

Monitor and review the progress of the start-ups of the programmes

Key matters considered/resolved:

. Cyberport Guangdong—Hong Kong Young Entrepreneur Programme
Cyberport Shenzhen—Hong Kong Young Entrepreneur Programme
Cyberport Accelerator Support Programme
Amendments to Guides and Notes for the Applicants—CCMF and
Cyberport Incubation Programme
Proposal to revise the Team Composition Requirement in the Cross-
Boundary Programmes of CCMF Scheme
Amendments of Terms of Reference of ECAG
Cyberport University Partnership Programme
Vetting of Cyberport Incubation Programme and CCMF applications
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Macro Fund Investment Committee

The Macro Fund Investment Committee ("MFIC") is responsible for
overseeing the administration, management and overall performance of the
CMF and approval of the CMF related investments. The CMF, with an initial
size of HK$200 million, aims to provide seed to Series A stage funding to
Cyberport digital entrepreneurs ("DE") to assist them to accelerate; and to
promote the development of the venture capital ecosystem for DE in Hong
Kong. The CMF is an investment fund which targets to co-invest with other
private and public investors in the Cyberport DE.

Membership:  Five members
Chairman: Dr Lee George LAM

Members: Mr Andrew KUET Shun-cheong (external member)
Dr Edwin LEE Kan-hing
Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun
Ir Allen YEUNG Tak-bun (government representative)

Meetings: The MFIC convened four meetings during the year with
an average attendance rate of 83%. Attendance records of
individual members are set out on page 82.

Principal duties:
Review and approve CMF related investments and exit recommendations
from Management
Oversee administration, management and overall performance of the
CMF
Monitor and advise on the operation of the CMF

Approve the appointment of Co-Opted members

Key matters considered/resolved:
CMF Implementation Framework
Investment principles for CMF
CMF applications
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee ("RC") is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board on organisational structure and policies
on staffing, remuneration, employment, discipline and dismissal, with
reference to the Company’s overall goals and objectives.

Membership:  Six members
Chairperson: Ms Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Members: Mr CHEUK Wing-hing
Mr Duncan CHIU
Mr Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching
Mr LAU Chun-kong
Dr Gregg G. LI Ka-lok

Meetings: The RC convened three meetings during the year with an
average attendance rate of 73%. A total of six RC papers
were considered or resolved. Attendance records of
individual members are set out on page 82.

Principal duties:
Review staffing, remuneration and employment policies and
strategies
Advise the Board on staff-related issues, including annual corporate
goals and performance measures, grading and pay structure,
variable pay and retirement schemes

Review the criteria for assessing employee performance and make
recommendations to the Board

Review the salary increase and annual performance bonus for the
senior executives and general staff, and make recommendations to
the Board

Review the performance of the CEO, COO, CFQO, CPMO and the
Company, with reference to the Board's approved Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs") and objectives

Key matters considered/resolved:
Annual review of staff remuneration
Annual corporate performance assessment and award of variable
pay for staff
Termination policy
Corporate goals and performance measurements
2015/16 Performance review of the CEO, COO, CFO, CPMO and their
variable pay

Comprehensive Review on Organisation Staffing and Pay Structure of
the Company
Staff engagement and retention
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EERERRE
Meeting Attendance SR ERCRR
(1 April 2016 to 31 March 2017) (20165 4B 1HZE201743831H)
MFIC
S (e
Excom AC EC EEIE
Types of meetings BT Hit ¥R HE
f e ZE® ZEY® ZRY ZHY
Board Members EERKE
Paul CHOW (Retired from the ~ JESTIR (220165 1/1 2/2 - - - -
Board on 4 June 2016) 6B4HRFESE)
Lee George LAM (Appointed as  #ASR#& (7220164 44 5/5 - - 3/4* -
Board Chairman on 6BSHESE
5 June 2016) #FE)
Philip CHAN BRIES 3/5 - - 1/4 - -
CHEUK Wing-hing (including KB (BEEEE 5/5 7/7 - - - 3/3
attendance by alternate) EEHEERED
Duncan CHIU (Appointed as EREZEAR (7020164 L/4 4/5* 2/2* - - -
Director on 5 June 2016) 6HSHEZRE
AESE)
Humphrey CHOI BB 3/5 - - - - 2/3
Rosanna CHOI BEE 5/5 6/7 2/2 - - -
LAU Chun-kong EEoan 4/5 - 2/2 - - -
Edwin LEE FiRE 3/5 5/7 - 4/4 3/4* -
Gabriel PANG T 3/5 - - 4/4 - -
Douglas SO (Retired from the  BREZ18 (JA20174 3/5 - 1/2 - - 1/3
Board on 4 June 2017) 6RLBIREES)
Elizabeth TSE (Resigned from #1214 (7220164 2/2 - - - - -
the Board on 19 September OB 19HEHEE
2016) (including attendance =) (BEEEE
by alternate) BEZHERE)
Alfred WONG EE#E 5/5 6/7 - 4/4 - -
Peter YAN (Retired from the F=1E (1120175 2/5 47 - 0/4 - 3/3
Board on 4 June 2017) BLERFEES)
Jeny YEUNG [ ZESD) 4/5 - 2/2 - 4/4* 2/3
Remark: Mi5E
* Appointed as a member of the Committee on 24 June 2016. * R2016F6 2L HEZTAZEZEGME °
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Meeting Procedures

The Board and Committees convene meetings on a regular basis. Special
meetings will be held as and when necessary. Management circulates
papers prior to the respective meetings to provide members adequate
information in a timely manner to facilitate their deliberation of the issues
and decision-making. The respective Board/Committee Secretaries
record the major points of discussion, recommendations, decisions and
action items arising from the meetings. Outstanding matters are followed
up by the relevant departments, and progress updates are reported at
subsequent Board/Committee meetings.

Management and Staff

Management and staff, led by the Company’s CEO, are responsible for
managing the Company’'s day-to-day operations and implementing the
strategies and directions determined by the Board. The performance
of Management is reviewed with reference to the KPIs and objectives
approved by the Board. The annual emoluments of the Company’s
five highest paid employees by band are disclosed under note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements on page 129.

Guidance on the ethical behaviour of the Company has been well defined in
the Company’s Employee Code of Conduct and Business Ethics (the “Code”).
From time to time, the Code will be reviewed and fine-tuned, covering such
issues as prevention of bribery, conflict of interest, acceptance of gifts
and advantages, handling of confidential information and preservation of
secrecy, intellectual property, and outside business or employment. ICAC is
invited to give briefings on prevention of bribery and conflict of interest to
the employees of the Company on a regular basis. Staff members are also
reminded of the need for compliance with the Code from time to time.
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Internal Control and Risk Management

The Company aims to maintain a high standard of corporate governance
and enhance transparency and accountability. The external and internal
audit systems are instrumental in this mission.

External Audit

Ernst & Young was appointed as the Group's external auditor to conduct
the audit of its financial statements.

The main purpose of the external audit is to provide independent assurance
to the Board and shareholders that the annual financial statements
of the Group are fairly stated. The external auditor plays an important
independent role in expressing an opinion on the financial statements
based on their audit, and meets with the Audit Committee to discuss the
nature and scope of the audit prior to the commencement of the work if
necessary and to report on findings. The external auditor also reports
internal control recommendations identified as part of the audit together
with management responses, if any.

For the years ended 31 March 2016 and 2017, there was no non-audit
service provided by Ernst & Young.
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Internal Audit

The internal audit is primarily responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of internal control procedures and monitoring compliance
with them. The Company has outsourced its internal audit function to
an independent professional advisory firm to monitor the Company’s
internal governance and provide a basis for the Board to assess the risk
management and internal control system maintained and operated by
Management. The Audit Committee directly oversees the work performed
by the internal auditor. Independent reviews of financial, business and
functional operations and activities have been conducted with a focus on
higher risk areas of the Company. The internal audit plan is reviewed and
agreed by the Audit Committee in advance. Each year, the Audit Committee
reviews the results of the internal audit and evaluates the impact of the
findings and the proposed management action plans.

Whistleblowing Policy

The Company has a formal whistleblowing policy in place to encourage and
guide its staff to raise serious concerns internally in a responsible manner,
without any risk of retribution. The Company also encourages other
stakeholders to raise concerns, in confidence, about suspected misconduct,
malpractice or irregularities in any matters related to the Company.

Transparency

The Company reports annually to the Information Technology and
Broadcasting Panel of the Legislative Council regarding the work of
Cyberport in nurturing the Information and Communications Technology
Ecosystem in Hong Kong, including its financial performance.

To enhance transparency and openness, the Company voluntarily discloses
its compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code") as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The individual attendance records
of Members at the Board and Committee meetings is also reported on page
82.
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TEELRSE

With a view to maintain open and transparent communication with external
stakeholders, the Company continues to connect with the community
by taking advantage of multiple channels and tools. These include the
official website, monthly e-newsletters, press briefings and interviews, and
participation in a variety of local and overseas exhibitions and conferences.
Annual reports and information on our programmes and offerings are
disclosed on our website for public access. The Company also makes use
of social media such as Facebook, LinkedIn and Twitter for promotions and
information dissemination.

Delegation of Authority

The authority of the Board and the levels of authority delegated to the
Committees and Management is clearly defined and documented in the
Delegation of Authority Policy. Such delegation of authority is reviewed on
a regular basis to ensure that it meets the business and operational needs.

RABBNDEINAFDERFTFLAFRBERAD
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Corporate Governance Practices

Although the Company is not required to comply with the CG Code, we have
applied its principles and voluntarily complied with the code provisions

therein generally except for those as set out below:

Code Provisions

ERELHE

BERATFART(LEEATA) > @
REERTARINFR G HET > L
BT PRSI —ARARTE > LU TIRSH -

Reason for Deviation

A4

AL2t0AL3

A51toA5.6

Ab.4

FRNFESZ

Non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term, subject to re-election.

FHTEEHNEERARETEN  LAERE

These code provisions deal with the appointment
of directors to fill a casual vacancy, appointment
of independent non-executive directors and
retirement by rotation of directors.

BETAMRAMEEEFLUAMER TR
SEBIUIFPITES > URESNWMERT ©

These code provisions deal with the nomination
committee.

Directors must comply with obligations under
the Model Code for Securities Transactions
and the Board should establish guidelines for
relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the Company.

EFWAEBTETRSFXZURESTR > M
EERTEMERESEEAEESFEFERTE
55 e

fREERE

This provision is not applicable to the Company.
Directors are appointed generally for a term
of two years or a term as specified in the
appointment letter. Directors are not subject
to re-election but may be re-appointed by the
shareholders.

BERETHEAREAE - EENEHR—RD
2FNIRBEZERANIEEEH - EFERE
SEEE > BrIHRRENEE -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company. Pursuant to the Company's Articles
of Association, Directors are appointed by
shareholders.

BEREFTERANRART - REARTZ(A
BEE) EEHRRREE -

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company since Directors are appointed by the
shareholders.

BERETERANREAT > AEFHEKRRE
£

This provision is not applicable because all of
the Company's shares are beneficially owned
by the HKSAR Government and are not publicly
traded.

BERETERARERAE > BRRABRARND
HREBREENES » T NMFAREE -
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EEERES

Code Provisions

FRESZ

Reason for Deviation

fRigRE

C.35

E1Tt0E14&
E.2.1

The Remuneration Committee should make
recommendation to the Board on policy and
package for all remuneration of directors.

#HNZEE SR A ES RN SRR K
FENESRRELERE -

This code provision deals with the reporting
requirement in the Corporate Governance Report
regarding different views between the Board and
the Audit Committee on external auditor.

IESFRNFSCY REESERMNESZEGHIN
BREMBTrRERE » FEEEARE LN

WEEK ©

These code provisions deal with the proceedings
for annual general meetings.

BETAREARRBFRAGHIZFAR °

This provision is not applicable to the Company
because Board Members do not receive any
remuneration.

BERENERRARAT  HES/MELF
WRERAE (T %A

This provision is not applicable to the Company
because there is no disagreement between the
Board and the Audit Committee in this respect
so far.

BERENERRARE  Re5EE/KkE
SAEEEZBETABEEHEFAERR

These provisions are not applicable to the
Company as the Company is wholly owned
by the HKSAR Government via The Financial
Secretary Incorporated and Resolutions in
Writing in lieu of annual general meetings is
adopted.

BERETEAREART  BAtATLHE
BEERNEBHKRERSEEREHE © 3
5 FABZREFEARRRABEASE
B o
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Report of the Directors
EFERES

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for
the year ended 31 March 2017.

Principal activities

The principal activities of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

Results

The Group's loss for the year and the Group's financial position at 31 March
2017 are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 97 to
152.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Lee George LAM (Chairman) (appointed on 5 June 2016)

Paul CHOW Man-yiu (Chairman) (retired on 4 June 2016)

Philip CHAN Ching-ho

CHEUK Wing-hing

Humphrey CHOI Chor-ching

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

LAU Chun-kong

Edwin LEE Kan-hing

Gabriel PANG Tsz-kit

Alfred WONG Kwok-kuen

Jeny YEUNG Mei-chun

Duncan CHIU (appointed on 5 June 2016)

Gregg G. LI Ka-lok (appointed on 5 June 2017)

LING Kar-kan (appointed on 5 June 2017)

Rosana WONG Wai-man (appointed on 5 June 2017)

Elizabeth TSE Man-yee (resigned on 19 September 2016)

Douglas SO Cheung-tak (retired on 4 June 2017)

Peter YAN King-shun (retired on 4 June 2017)

YEUNG Tak-bun (alternate director to CHEUK Wing-hing)

CHAN Mable (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee,
resigned on 1 August 2016)

Andrew LAl Chi-wah (alternate director to Elizabeth TSE Man-yee,
appointed on 1 August 2016 and resigned on 19 September 2016)

There being no provision in the Company’s Articles of Association in
connection with the retirement of directors by rotation, all existing Directors
continue in office for the following year.

EEREEEREEE2017E3831HLILEE
YRS RS EAZ A TR IR o

FEEH
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E S5
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BHo
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e
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BEE
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=R (7220175635 HEERT)

B8 (7R2016FE98 19H EHE)

BRELME (FA201 76 B 4HIEE)
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B (K BN B EES)
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Directors (continued)

The persons who were directors of the subsidiaries of the Company during
the year and up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated) were:

Herman LAM Heung-yeung
WONG Mei-wan

Ke-vin CHIN*

Marvin LAI*

* Resigned as a director of the relevant subsidiaries of the Company.

Directors’ interests in shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding
companies, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Company'’s directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Directors’
contracts

interests in transactions, arrangements or

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance to the business
of the Company to which any of the Company’s holding companies,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Management contracts

Save for the management agreement of Le Méridien Cyberport, the facilities
management agreement and the system operation contract, no other
contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the businesses of the Company and its subsidiaries
were entered into or existed during the year.

Permitted indemnity provision

During the year and up to the date of this report, the permitted indemnity
provision as defined in section 469 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
for the benefit of the directors of the Company was in force. The Company
has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for the directors’ liabilities
in respect of any legal actions against its directors arising out of corporate
activities.

=S¢
AKREEARS L BEEEREM
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Report of the Directors
EEREE

Auditor

KPMG resigned as auditor of the Company and Ernst & Young were
appointed by the Directors to fill the causal vacancy so arising. A resolution
for the reappointment of Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Lee George LAM
Chairman

Hong Kong
26 September 2017
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Independent Auditor’s Report
VR e

Independent auditor’s report
To the member of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hong Kong
Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to
152, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 March 2017, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2017,
and the consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the report of
the Directors.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B EETER S

Information other than the consolidated financial statements
and auditor’s report thereon (continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the Directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud

or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 405 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

ZE BN E sHir S MR R A KR
BEE @

ERBE(EREFERD)ETEFNBRE
o RPIERE AT RITEEIRER
E o FxfFI75 -

Bl Ko 5Tl RS ERE R B SEER M B 2w
BMBREFEEAERRLENR
o Rt RAITESEZFUBHZE
Rz - LURERTE & BEENE R
32 FRARFISRAER - MICERGE
AIRES R BBER ~ RIE C ERER - &
R > SEREFAERERZ £ o
HERAEHIMEFFME R B AR
BRILRYE SRS AR A SRR R M E
HHVEATERIRAAY R R o

B AR B STARRARY VBRI - LIRS
BEENEERF > EENLIFY &
ERAMERNNAEMIEEERER -

SHAESFTRAE ST BERNBE MU
AR H &5t {E 5t R BRI B2 BY 5 32
o

HEFRARBEEESHERNGE
MR SR » WARIRFTIEEAVE TR
B BRERSFERFENBRA
FNEATEEME > MR EER
N EEENFEEEENELEEXR
RE o MAPRSEFEERTETE
Mo IR EEZEEMREPIRGAE
REIRGEMBREPOERK
B MARMKETRE  BIRMAEEH
RIFBFREER - ZFINEREER
Z B ek & B HA L PREVIG BV B 5HR
5% o AN » RERFENBERAES

N EEETEREKE -

AR S ISR EERR TR A
ERMAS (BIEEE) - URAaR
BHREAESATRMEARZ ~E
I8 o

SRS 2016/17 4R 95



Independent Auditor’s Report
B EETER S

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements (continued)

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
26 September 2017
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
raiRmREHMEEER

Year ended 31 March 2017

HE2017F383 HIEFEE

REVENUE WA 4 448,973,189 447,537,112
Other net income HAKAFZE 24,710,416 20,675,215
473,683,605 468,212,327

Expenses before public mission Rt AREREH T H R

activities expenses and depreciation ITENZH
Building management expenses SRS (142,966,235) (141,126,656)
Staff costs BTRA (87,487,756) (86,792,068)
Government rent and rates HhFR Ry 2= B (14,090,906) (13,688,039)
Other operating expenses HihEEL (76,727,617) (74,333,535)
Finance costs A5 E 6 (20,757) (29,751)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (321,293,271)  (315,970,049)
Operating profit before public mission RetAREREIZHRK

activities expenses and depreciation INERNEIERT 152,390,334 152,242,278
Public mission activities expenses NR(EEBIS 10 (104,170,514) (82,659,716)
Operating profit before depreciation REHFERNEIERT 48,219,820 69,582,562
Depreciation TEE (123,067,357) (117,713,101)
LOSS BEFORE TAX FRIgFIESIE 6 (74,847,537) (48,130,539)
Income tax Frigie 11 - _
Loss and total comprehensive FAGEREEEEEEE

loss for the year (74,847,537) (48,130,539)

FEE 2016/17 EE3R
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

sRe MR RR

As at 31 March 2017

12017438311

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JETEENEE
Property, plant and equipment WEE MR R 13 2,976,675,890 2,995,513,860
Deferred rental receivables FIEEWAE S 15,738,361 14,690,545
Cyberport Macro Fund investment HITBR BRI ERETRE 14 6,221,450 -
Investments in securities BHKE 15 430,053,583 559,202,194
Total non-current assets IERENE ELEEE 3,428,689,284 3,569,406,599
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories =5 595,761 450,650
Trade receivables ESER 16 9,199,554 4,669,867
Prepayments, deposits and FTERIE ~ 5 R HA

other receivables A ERE] 17 19,059,547 20,670,852
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries I EIEN N YANCTE 27(b) 2,348,448 1,892,385
Investments in securities BHRE 15 570,713,140 404,346,906
Cash and bank balances BE MIETER 18 107,144,969 185,286,364
Total current assets SENE ERE 709,061,419 617,317,024
CURRENT LIABILITIES meEnafa
Trade payables FE(TBRTR 35,472,265 45,693,220
Other payables and accruals HE I RIE R EstE R 60,388,352 24,621,250
Rental and other deposits HEEREMIZS 19 79,426,375 77,001,592
Amount due to the immediate B BRI AT

holding company 27(b) 254,293,578 254,303,568
Obligations under a finance lease B RE R 20 2,095,355 2,086,322
Total current liabilities SENa{SERE 431,675,925 403,705,952
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 277,385,494 213,611,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERTREAE

LIABILITIES 3,706,074,778 3,783,017,671
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES e[t 1=0i-|
Development maintenance fund BREEES 21 402,110,194 422,214,986
Facilities maintenance fund RITHEER S 22 - 29,975,074
Obligations under a finance lease ShEH SR 20 1,577,476 3,672,832
Total non-current liabilities IEGEa(BEEE 403,687,670 455,862,892
Net assets HESE 3,302,387,108  3,327,154779
EQUITY Rz
Share capital %N 23 2 2
Capital reserve =PNE 5,363,136,217 5,313,056,351
Accumulated losses EstiEsE (2,060,749,111)  (1,985,901,574)
Total equity RExs4REE 3,302,387,108 3,327,154,779

Lee George LAM
xR

Director

EF

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak

BEE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
ralEme IR

Year ended 31 March 2017 HE20174E3831HILEE

Share Capital Accumulated Total
capital reserve losses equity
123 BAfHE FatEsE ]
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2015 201554818 5,302,729,607 (1,937,771,035) 3,364,958,574
Loss and total comprehensive FEREIERE HEEE
loss for the year 4878 = (48,130,539) (48,130,539)
Transfer from development  HZERHEEBESEHRAE
maintenance fund to BAHE
capital reserve 21 693,044 = 693,044
Transfer from facilities MR EECERE
maintenance fund to EENG
capital reserve 22 9,633,700 = 9,633,700
At 31 March 2016 and 12016538318 K
at 1 April 2016 201654818 5,313,056,351 (1,985,901,574) 3,327,154,779
Loss and total comprehensive EREGIER 2 EEE
loss for the year Rk - (74,847,537)  (74,847,537)
Transfer from development  HEEMHEELSEES
maintenance fund to EENE
capital reserve 21 20,104,792 - 20,104,792
Transfer from facilities HREEESEBER
maintenance fund to e
capital reserve 22 29,975,074 - 29,975,074

At 31 March 2017

201753831H

5,363,136,217

(2,060,749,111)  3,302,387,108
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FRRERER

Year ended 31 March 2017

HE2017F383HIEFEE

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBHNRERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax PRI ARSI (74,847,537) (48,130,539)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation ITE 123,067,357 117,713,101
Realisation of government grants B mBha &R (1,542,594) (1,572,510)
Interest income from held-to-maturity HEEIPRKREFR
investments, net of amortisation of W R E
premium (15,465,384) (16,502,660)
Interest income from investments at AR BESTAETL
fair value through profit or loss BEFMEWA (11,705,473) (8,603,452)
Net realised/unrealised losses on BARBESTAETN
investments at fair value through BEDEIR/REIR
profit or loss B985 %8 3,764,570 3,370,038
Interest income on bank deposits IRTTERF BUA (125,570) (1,142,171)
Impairment of trade receivables FEWBRFRE 121,493 10,685
Reversal of provision for impairment of ~ FEUKBR 206 (B 125 1 (o)1
trade receivables (10,685) -
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYE « WIS L
property, plant and equipment, net BEM (W) /B8535 (54,602) 161,442
Finance costs HFER 20,757 29,751
Revaluation loss on investments LB EhLEE 615,047 3,623,602
23,837,379 48,957,287
Increase in deferred rental receivables IEAEFEUSFR S 1E 0 (1,047,816) (1,698,432)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories =58 () /R (145,111) 32,374
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables  FEURBEZR (Y1) /582 (4,640,495) 400,565
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEIRUE ~ M EAMAEIR
deposits and other receivables IE R/ (g ) 1,907,761 (7,542,522)
Increase in amounts due from fellow FEURE) 2 M 8 2 Bl R IEIE 1
subsidiaries (456,063) (68,038)
Decrease in trade payables FE(TBRRURLD (10,220,955) (2,805,078)
Increase/(decrease) in other payables HME A RIE R Est &R
and accruals g/ Gzl 35,767,102 (732,375)
Increase in rental and other deposits HE R EHMIZEE 2,424,783 2.424,113
Net cash flows from operating activities & ;FENNIREHRE A 47,426,585 38,967,894

] OO Cyberport 2016/17 Annual Report



CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Purchase of items of property, plant

REEHNRENE

BAME ~ R mER

and equipment (104,244,785) (30,831,766)
Purchase of available-for-sale investment B A BJ{EHERE (6,221,450) -
Purchase of investments at fair value BARAABESAEZN

through profit or loss BE (288,346,446) (88,601,324)
Proceeds from sale and redemption of HEMELRFEERIEAN

held-to-maturity investments LBRERIE 87,509,285 63,094,475
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEYZE ~ MBS EREER

property, plant and equipment FrgIE 70,000 -
Proceeds from sale and redemption of HERERIZA DBEST A

investments at fair value through IEm R ERTETIE

profit or loss 155,216,156 71,284,602
Interest income received from: BUFISEWA

— Held-to-maturity investments —EFEEIHRKE 20,604,488 20,819,001

— Investments at fair value through —BARBESAEEN

profit or loss BB 10,749,613 8,459,299

— Bank deposits —IRITER 130,489 1,137,803
Net cash flows (used in)/from REEE (FRR) /FREER

investing activities HERE P (124,532,650) 45,362,090
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING M EBNRERE

ACTIVITIES
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to the  FE{TEHEHIZRATIFIE

immediate holding company CRiZL) /380 (9,990) 76,341
Government grants received BN EEE 1,081,740 691,859
Capital element of finance lease rentals ~ RAEFHEHES(TRE RS D

payments (2,086,323) (2,077,329)
Interest element of finance lease rentals AR EHSFFEE 9

payments (20,757] (29,751)
Net cash flows used in financing activities BAFE;EEFRARIR & REB5E (1,035,330) (1,338,880)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE INCASH & RIRE&Z(EIER

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (i) /48 hn#ER (78,141,395) 82,991,104
Cash and cash equivalents at the FYNIRERIREEEEE

beginning of year 185,286,364 102,295,260
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT FRNRE RS EERE

THE END OF YEAR 18 107,144,969 185,286,364
ANALYSIS OF BALANCE OF CASH RERRESEABGRIMN

AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances RS MIRITEET 107,144,969 185,286,364
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Notes to Financial Statements
BTSRRI

Corporate information

Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited (the “Company”)
is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
registered office of the Company is located at Units 1102-1104, Level
11, Cyberport 2, 100 Cyberport Road, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is to support and promote
innovation and technology development in Hong Kong through
the creation of a comprehensive ecosystem of digital technology
companies.

With a vision to build Cyberport as a main force in developing the
digital technology industry as a key economic driver of Hong Kong (the
“Vision"), the public mission of the Company are anchored on three
strategic directions:

= Nurtures youth and start-ups by providing comprehensive
entrepreneurship programmes and early stage funding;

= Scales digital technology companies with Cyberport's global
network; and

= Connects enterprises, SMEs and the public in fostering digital
economy.

Under the Group's relentless pursuit of excellence, the Group takes
a pragmatic and comprehensive approach in realising its Vision. To
ensure the line-up of services is dynamic and flexible in meeting the
needs of budding technology entrepreneurs, investor community and
industry talents, the Company actively builds strong partnerships
with leaders from technology industry, academia, research institutes
and professional bodies.

During the year, to further extend the Group's entrepreneurial
support to scalable start-ups, the Company has launched the
Cyberport Macro Fund (“CMF") for Hong Kong-based digital
entrepreneurs. With an initial size of HK$200 million, the CMF
aims to accelerate the growth of digital technology start-ups. As
an investment fund that targets to co-invest in Cyberport digital
entrepreneurs with other private and public investors as seed
to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to encourage the
development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-ups in Hong
Kong. Further details of the investment made up to the end of the
reporting period are included in note 14 to the financial statements.
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2.1

Corporate information (continued)

The Group has established various teams (“Operating Teams”) to
achieve the above public mission. The expenses incurred by the
Operating Teams that contribute to the successful running of the
public mission activities are disclosed in note 10 to the financial
statements.

The Company is a direct wholly-owned subsidiary of Hong Kong
Cyberport Development Holdings Limited, a company incorporated
in Hong Kong and is wholly-owned by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region (“HKSAR") via The Financial
Secretary Incorporated.

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued ordinary
Name

a8

incorporation share capital

EMRIItEE BRTEERS

Cyberport Macro Fund Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1
BB 1787T
CMF One Limited Hong Kong HKS$1
BB 1787
CMF Two Limited Hong Kong HK$1
BB 1787

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Interpretations)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and an available-for-sale investment which has
been measured at fair value. These consolidated financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is also the
functional currency of the Group.

ATEE @)

RER ERAFR S 0 AEBEEMIL
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PRIHEIR A R an A BN AR S
REA TSR M SE 104K 88 o

KRB B BHBBERIZRARA
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H& (TE8FE)) BINSBHMKE
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MEAT o

FRAMBATNEY
FABMBATFENT -

Percentage of equity

attributable to Principal
the Company activities
FAFEMLEETSLE FEEH
Direct Indirect
Ei% i
100 - Investment holding
SEER
= 100 Investment holding
KEER
- 100 Inactive
2.1 REREE
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.1

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiary (collectively referred to
as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2017. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Group. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Group has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
()  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Group, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
on which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described in the accounting
policy for subsidiaries above. A change in the ownership interest of
a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

2.1 RNEE )
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2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or
retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised HKFRSs for
the first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

Investment Entities. Applying the
Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
Interest in Joint Operations

HKFRS 14

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Regulatory Deferral Accounts
Disclosure Initiative
Clarification of Acceptance Methods

and HKAS 38 of Depreciation and Amortisation
Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41
Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial
(2011) Statements

Annual Improvements Amendments to a number of HKFRSs

2012-2014 Cycle

The adoption of the above new and revised standards has had no
significant financial effect on these consolidated financial statements.

2.1

2.2
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Notes to Financial Statements
AR RMIEE

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards

HK(IFRIC)-Int 22

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Amendments to HKFRS 4

HKFRS 9
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15
Amendments to HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 40

Annual Improvements
2014-2016 Cycle

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration?

Classification and Measurement of Share-
based Payment Transactions?

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts?

Financial Instruments?

Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture*

Revenue from Contracts with Customers?

Clarifications to HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers?

Leases®

Disclosure Initiative?

Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses!

Transfers of Investment Property?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs®

[ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018

E Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

6 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 or 2018, as

appropriate
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the impact
of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application. Further
information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be applicable
to the Group is as follows:

In September 2014, the HKICPA issued the final version of HKFRS
9, bringing together all phases of the financial instruments project
to replace HKAS 39 and all previous versions of HKFRS 9. The
standards introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2018. The Group performed a high-
level assessment of the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 9. This
preliminary assessment is based on currently available information
and may be subject to changes arising from further detailed analyses
or additional reasonable and supportable information being made
available to the Group in the future. The Group does not expect
that the adoption of HKFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the
classification and measurement of its financial assets. It expects to
continue measuring at fair value all financial assets currently held at
fair value.

HKFRS 15 establishes a new five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under HKFRS 15, revenue
is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration to which
an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods
or services to a customer. The principles in HKFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising revenue.
The standard also introduces extensive qualitative and quantitative
disclosure requirements, including disaggregation of total revenue,
information about performance obligations, changes in contract asset
and liability account balances between periods and key judgements
and estimates. The standard will supersede all current revenue
recognition requirements under HKFRSs. In June 2016, the HKICPA
issued amendments to HKFRS 15 to address the implement issues on
identifying performance obligations, application guidance on principal
versus agent and licences of intellectual property, and transition. The
Group expects to adopt HKFRS 15 on 1 April 2018. Under HKFRS 15,
an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with
specific scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

2.3 BlEHERKREMEEMLFE
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.3

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the potential
impact of the application of HKFRS 15 and it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
detailed review is performed by the Group.

HKFRS 16 Leases was issued by the HKICPA in May 2016. HKFRS
16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases. For lessee accounting, the
standard introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires
a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of
low value. A lessee is required to recognise a right-of-use asset
representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease
liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. For
lessor accounting, the standard substantially carries forward the
lessor accounting requirements in HKAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor
continues to classify its leases as operating leases or finance leases,
and to account for those two types of leases differently. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 16 on 1 April 2019. Based on the Group's
undiscounted operating lease commitment of HK$25,304,945 as set
out in note 25(b) to the financial statements, the adoption is expected
to have an impact on the financial position and financial performance
of the Group and the detailed assessment is still in progress.

Amendments to HKAS 7 require an entity to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from
cash flows and non-cash changes. The amendments will result in
additional disclosure to be provided in the financial statements. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments from 1 April 2017.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and an available-for-sale investment at fair value at the
end of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either
in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of
a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be
accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, financial
assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset's recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's
or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable
amount is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is
reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person's family
and that person:

(i)

(i

(iif)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group; or

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is @ member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is
incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying
amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

Over the period

Buildings of the lease
Building services and support facilities 10%
Information technology facilities 20%
Centres equipment 20% - 33'/.%
Leasehold improvements 10%

Furniture and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial
year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in profit or loss in
the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance lease,
the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present value of the
minimum lease payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and financing.
Assets held under capitalised finance leases, including prepaid land
lease payments under finance leases, are included in property, plant
and equipment, and depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms
and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a constant
periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated over
their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of
assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating leases.
Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the Group under
operating leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the
lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net of any incentives
received from the lessor are charged to profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Financial assets and investments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets of the Group are classified, at initial recognition,
as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial investments, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial assets.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits
to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets and investments (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose
of sale in the near term.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial recognition
and only if the criteria in HKAS 39 are satisfied.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed
or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such assets are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and includes fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in other income and
gains in profit or loss. The loss arising from impairment is recognised
in profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in other expenses for
receivables.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets and investments (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity are classified as held to maturity when the Group
has the positive intention and ability to hold them to maturity. Held-
to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest
rate amortisation is included in profit or loss. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in profit or loss in other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity investments. Equity investments classified
as available for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated as at fair value through profit or loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial investments are
subsequently measured at fair value, with unrealised gains or losses
recognised as other comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is derecognised,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss, or until the investment is determined to be impaired, when the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve to the statement of profit or loss in
other gains or losses. Interest and dividends earned whilst holding
the available-for-sale financial investments are reported as interest
income and dividend income, respectively and are recognised in
profit or loss in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments cannot be reliably
measured because (a) the variability in the range of reasonable
fair value estimates is significant for that investment or (b) the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range cannot
be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value, such
investments are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention to sell
its available-for-sale financial assets in the near term are still
appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the Group is unable to
trade these financial assets due to inactive markets, the Group may
elect to reclassify these financial assets if management has the
ability and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable future or
until maturity.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis
that reflects the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or
the group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or a group of
debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and
observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in
a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics
and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the estimated
future cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition).

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in profit or loss. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying amount using
the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off when there
is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Financial assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group assesses at
the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment and
amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment loss
previously recognised in profit or loss, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss.

In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale,
objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of an investment below its cost. “Significant” is
evaluated against the original cost of the investment and “prolonged”
against the period in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss
- measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in profit or loss - is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through profit or loss. Increases in their fair value after
impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive income.

The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged” requires
judgement. In making this judgement, the Group evaluates, among
other factors, the duration or extent to which the fair value of an
investment is less than its cost.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement - loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net realisable value
is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs of
disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statements of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are
measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period,
taking into consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in
the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity
and the same taxation authority.
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2.4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there

is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all

attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates

to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis

over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to compensate,

are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits

will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be measured

reliably, on the following bases:

0

(iii)

(vii)

rental income and contingent rentals, on a straight-line basis
over the terms of the lease and in the accounting period in
which they are earned, respectively;

management fee income, when the services are rendered;

income from hotel operation, upon provision of services;

car park fee and information technology facilities income, when
the services are rendered and facilities are utilised;

income from leasing of centre facilities, when the facilities are
utilised;

other incidental income and services income, when the income
is entitled and services are rendered; and

interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the
financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Notes to Financial Statements
AT ERRMIEE

2.4

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme") under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees' basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Foreign currency transactions

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Group’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions.

Significant accounting estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and
the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.
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Significant accounting estimates (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group performs review for impairment of non-financial assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount of the assets may not be recoverable.

The Group reviews certain indicators of potential impairment of these
assets such as reported sales and purchase prices, market demand
and general market conditions. The Group considers "Buildings
held for rental”, "Hotel building” and "Building services and support
facilities” as a portfolio of assets and identifies the cash-generating
unit to which the portfolio of assets belongs by referring to the
valuation performed by independent external valuers, after taking
into consideration the net income allowing for reversionary potential.
The assumptions adopted in the property valuation are based on
the market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period,
with reference to current market sales prices and the appropriate
capitalisation rate.

Based on the Group's best estimates, no provision for impairment
loss on the non-financial assets is necessary.

Investments in securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 on initial classification of
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments
and fixed maturity as held-to-maturity if the Group has the intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity; or at fair value
through profit or loss if the investments are managed by external
fund managers and their performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, and information about the investments is provided internally
on that basis to the Group's key management.

For held-to-maturity investments, the Group evaluates its intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to keep these investments to maturity other than for specific
circumstances - for example, selling an insignificant amount close
to maturity - it will be required to reclassify the entire class as
available-for-sale. The investments would, therefore, be measured at
fair value not at amortised cost.

For investments designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
Group engages external fund managers to manage the investment
portfolio which is evaluated and reported internally on a fair value
basis. Accordingly, these investments are designated as at fair value
through profit or loss and are stated at fair value with subsequent
changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Notes to Financial Statements

MR ME
3. Significant accounting estimates (continued) b N o )
Estimation uncertainty (continued) st FEEEE (&)

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables based on the credit history or the financial position
of its customers and the current market conditions. The Group
assesses the adequacy of provision for impairment of trade and
other receivables at the end of each reporting period and significant
level of judgement is required in determining the adequacy of such
provision.

Fair value of unlisted equity investment

The unlisted equity investment has been valued based on the
recent market transaction price. The fair value of the unlisted equity
investment at 31 March 2017 was HK$6,221,450. Further details are
included in note 14 to the financial statements.

Useful lives and residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives and residual values of items of
property, plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence arising from
change or improvements in the provision of services, or from a
change in the market demand for the service output of the asset, the
expected usage of the asset, the expected physical wear and tear, the
care and maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on the
use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of the asset is based
on the experience of the Group with similar assets that are used in
a similar way. Adjustment of depreciation is made if the estimated
useful lives and/or residual values of items of property, plant and
equipment are different from previous estimation. Useful lives and
residual values are reviewed at the end of each reporting period
based on changes in circumstances.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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Revenue and other net income

An analysis of revenue and other net income is as follows:

»

WA SE AU AR R
A BE IS A B ERZ DT :

Revenue WA
Rental income HEUA 216,704,284 210,588,164
Building management income BB
- Management fee income —EIEBIRA 85,195,492 84,256,008
- Car park fee income —AEEITA 13,506,822 11,736,728
- Other facilities income — EMERTEUA 19,432,099 20,973,213
Income from hotel operation S AT A 113,926,173 119,421,577
Information technology facilities income =RV SE o3l N 98,963 481,439
Other incidental income HANFEIEIRA 109,356 79,983
448,973,189 447,537,112
Other net income HAKAFZE
Interest income from held-to-maturity BFEEIBRKEZ
investments, net of amortisation of FEUA > MNFREE
premium of HK$4,023,765 (HK$4,213,416) #8H4,023,7658 70
(4,213,61687T) 15,465,384 16,502,660
Interest income from investments at fair value  3ZAREEFTAIER
through profit or loss LE 2 EWA 11,705,473 8,603,452
Interest income on bank deposits RITERZA EWA 125,570 1,142,171
Services income from fellow subsidiaries RIZMIEB AT Z ARFEUA 4,201,654 4,201,654
Net realised/unrealised losses on investments HADEETABEZIZEY
at fair value through profit or loss BN/ R EIR R/ FEE (3,764,570) (33370,038)
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEREFRE (3,103,780) (6,800,537)
Gain on disposal of items of property, HEYZE - 23K
plant and equipment RBEE 2 W 70,000 =
Reversal of provision for impairment of BEIRWAR 2
trade receivables BEEE 10,685 -
Sundry income FEIEUTA - 395,853
24,710,416 20,675,215

Note:

F3E -

On 24 May 2000, a portion of the Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam
("Residential Portion") was assigned to Hong Kong Cyberport (Ancillary Development)
Limited ("HKCADL"), a fellow subsidiary, by Hong Kong Cyberport Development Holdings
Limited ("the immediate holding company”). Pursuant to the services agreement dated
25 October 2003 entered into between the Company and HKCADL, a fixed monthly
services income of HK$125,600 was received from HKCADL commencing from November
2003 for the provision of services by the Company to facilitate the operation of the
Residential Portion. The fee was revised to HK$200,000 commencing from April 2006 and
to HK$261,000 commencing from May 2008. Total amount received during the year was
HK$3,132,000 (2016: HK$3,132,000).

Pursuant to the services agreement dated 12 March 2005 entered into between the
Company and Skillful Limited, a fellow subsidiary, a monthly services income was
received for the provision of information technology and telecommunications services to
the Residential Portion. Total amount received during the year was HK$1,069,654 (2016:
HK$1,069,654).
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5 1) o 1RIE20034 108 25 H A A B EAHKCADL
B ZREWE 0 ARBMEEH D2 EER
AR5 > B20034 118 Bi%AS A mHKCADLUKER
125,600 78 75 Z B E RFUA ° B20065F48 K&
2008458 /L - thIEUNE 5 BIEST #4485 200,000
BT R2261,000787T © AREE B UWAEZE 3,132,000
T (20164 : 3,132,000587T) ©

RIF2005F 3B 12BRAFHERKE A A
Skillful Limited 22 5] Z AR %5 1% > AR BER(E
DR ME AR R B mE R WEARS
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Notes to Financial Statements
BRI

Staff costs

An analysis of staff costs is as follows:

BETHA

BITMAZDHWT

Salaries and allowances Fe SoRRE 95,084,816 91,558,818
Unutilised annual leave REAFER 2,424,568 1,641,257
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRERNEH IR 4,453,490 4,328,642
Staff benefits and other staff costs B THEMNREME T A 1,878,751 951,689
103,841,625 98,480,406
Analysed into: DA

Hotel JBIE 53,942,073 53,934,639
Corporate office NERER 33,545,683 32,857,429
87,487,756 86,792,068
Operating Teams (note 10) EEER (FIEE10) 16,353,869 11,688,338
103,841,625 98,480,406

Loss before tax 6. [RIRmiESIE

The Group's loss before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

FEMZBFRATBERENE/ (BT A)

THIEE

Rental income less outgoings of
HK$12,626,106 (2016: HK$12,114,005)

Cost of inventories

Auditor's remuneration

Impairment of trade receivables

Reversal of provision for impairment of trade
receivables

(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property,
plant and equipment, net

Finance costs:

Finance charges on obligations under a finance
lease

AU AIOBR
B3 12,626,10678 7T
(20164 : 12,114,005:87T)
FEMA
TZEREMBNE
FEWER TR 2 &
RECIEWERR 2
RERE
HEME B RREER
Z (Wes) /B5180 358
A& -
RMEREREZ
M H

(204,078,178)
15,578,728
208,000
121,493

(10,685)

(54,602)

20,757

(198,474,159)
15,599,794
430,600
10,685

161,442

29,751
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Directors’ remunerations 7. EEE
RIBEB A TMEFIZE383(1)E KR AT

(REEFFIER) RAIF2EPIKER
ZAEEEEMET ¢

The emoluments of the Directors of the Group disclosed pursuant to
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)

Regulation are as follows:

Directors' fees EEBEE - =
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREYEN - -
Discretionary bonuses FYIBAEAL - =
Retirement scheme contributions IRIRETEMHERR - -
Five highest paid employees 8. hE¥EmSES

Details of the remuneration of the five non-director highest paid

employees are as follows:

AR FEERSHREEZMEFEN
Lk

Salaries and allowances e SoRRE 12,185,088 11,537,768
Retirement benefit scheme contributions BRIRERET (R 180,000 180,000
12,365,088 11,717,768

The number of the non-director highest paid employee whose

remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MENFUTBEZIFESRSHE
BEZ#BWMT :

2017 2016

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000

1,000,001787c2 1,500,000 75
1,500,001787522,000,00078 75
2,000,001787542,500,0008 7T
2,500,001787TC2 3,000,000 75
3,000,001787c% 3,500,000 75
3,500,001787524,000,00078 75

- 1
3 2
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SRR MG
9. Government rent and rates 9. thiRREM
An analysis of government rent and rates is as follows: AR ERZ 2T

10.

11.

Hotel SEIE 1,464,800 1,574,034
Corporate office NEER 12,626,106 12,114,005
14,090,906 13,688,039
Operating Teams (note 10) EEE R (FfsE10) 433,273 446,880
14,524,179 14,134,919
Public mission activities expenses 10. AREmFEZH

All direct and indirect expenses incurred for the primary and

dominant purpose of public mission and that contribute to the

successful running of public mission activities as described in note 1

to the financial statements are considered as public mission activities

expenses. Such expenses comprise:

AR (o0 2 B B M IRRMEE
1P BTN A R dn A B PR E
ZFrBE B AEE HITRER AR
fEmmEEs - AR EE !

Staff costs BTITHA 16,353,869 11,688,338
Information technology facilities BRI EREREER

maintenance fees 27,854,812 27,328,963
Financial assistance to industry start-ups BERRIEISE = 24,072,657 15,585,096
Programme expenses (seminars, trainings, BBt (Fsts ~ 553l

competitions, workshops and exhibitions) LB TR REE 25,863,189 24,450,620
Government rent and rates AR S = 433,273 446,880
Public mission communications NI EEE 10,652,440 2,637,354
Operating expenses KL H 5,896,496 7,501,721
Recovery of direct expenses (including el B (B HEERT

government grants of HK$1,542,594 fHENE1,542,594787T

(2016: HK$1,572,510)) (20164F : 1572510%7T)) (6,956,222) (6,979,256)

104,170,514 82,659,716

Income tax FRiSR

No praovision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as the Group

did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during

the year (2016: Nil).

AR TEERFEETERESBEET
AIFERRVER] > B ELE B BN
RS (20164E & 4®) o
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11.

12.

Income tax (continued) 11. PRSI ®)

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to the loss before tax BRRRE B EAEMEE ZRRA]
at the Hong Kong statutory rate to the tax amount at the Group's EiE 2 IR e B R EE BRI X
effective tax rate is as follows: STEZMREEZHERT ¢

Loss before tax BRI ETE (74,847,537) (48,130,539)
Tax credit at the Hong Kong statutory tax BEBEATERZEI165%:TEZ

rate of 16.5% RIS S (12,349,844) (7.941,539)
Income not subject to tax EEZEE LA N (20,719) (299,555)
Tax losses not recognised RHER 2 RIERIE 12,370,563 8,241,094

Tax amount at the Group's effective tax rate BARERERREAE 2 - =

Deferred tax 12. IRIEFRIA
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year FR o RERIBEEEKEEZEHEN
are as follows: T <

Losses  Depreciation
available for in excess of
offsetting related
against future  depreciation
taxable profits allowance Others

QR i FrEsh
RARIEERI BRE
wrzeE BEZEE

HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 April 2015 1201554818 (64,003,388) 64,237,960 (234572) =
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit or loss  ERFEE (51 A) /H1k
during the year ZIEERRIE (15317.908) 15208574 109,334 -
At 31 March 2016 and 1 April 2016 R2016E3831 B K%
2016FLB1H (79,321,296) 79,446,534 (125,238) -
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit or loss  ERF 8% (51 A) /H0k
during the year ZIEEIRIE (22,152,767) 22,162,629 (9,862) -
At 31 March 2017 12017438310 (101,474,063) 101,609,163 (135,100) -
Deferred tax assets are not recognised for temporary differences BHR AR EET BB RRERR
arising from tax losses carried forward due to uncertainty of AN EIRAERARIENE 0 AR
realisation of the related tax benefit through the future taxable ERIEBEMEE 2 EREZERST
profits. As at 31 March 2017, the Group had unrecognised tax FIERIBEE o 8 E 2017538 31
losses of approximately HK$2,097,000,000 (2016: approximately H> AEBEHERTRABZMRIEBES
HK$2,022,000,000). The tax losses have no expiry date and are yet to $8#92,097,000,000 78 7T (2016 4 © &9
be agreed by the Inland Revenue Department. 2,022,000,000787t) © IRIERSIEN IR

H > BREIRF R o
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MEHRRIIE
13. Property, plant and equipment 13. Y% - B RRE
Building
services Information
Buildings Hotel  andsupport technology Centres Leasehold ~ Furniture and Motor
held for rental building aclities facilities equipment /ements equipment vehicles
51 ding 53 5 i
BT BIEET : IRIE B
Hi$ HKS HiS
AT Al A1 ; #n
(note (i)
(FizE(i)
31 March 2017 01738318
At 31 March 2016 and RNI6EIFIIER
1 April 2016; WIEELBIR :
Cost FiR 3557,123,776 274937912 1173977211 236,249,498 60,886,254 80,518,905 156,834,546 1,018,019  5541,546,181
Accumulated depreciation KitiE (923,708,426)  (71,464,008) (1,151,441,535)  (226,641,810)  (60,886,254)  (27,067,964)  (83,826,319) (996,005) (2,546,032,321)
Net carrying amount BEE 2,633,415,350 203473906 22,535,736 9,607,688 - 53450941 73008227 22,014 2,995,513,860
At 1 April 2016, net of R0I6ELRIE
accumulated depreciation NBEtE 2,633,415,350 203473906 22,535,736 9,607,688 - 53450941 73,008,227 22,016 2,995,513,860
Additions hE - - 30306850 20,104,792 - 36,361,531 16,761,612 710,000 104,244,785
Depreciation provided during ~ ZER3HEHE
the year (171,142965)  (5955334)  (3,488,279)  (5,661,984) - (8,150,635)  (22,527,813) (140,347)  (123,067,357)
Disposal HE - - - - - - (15,398) - (15,398)
At31 March 2017, et of RNITEIRIE
accurnulated depreciation TRSaiE 2556272385 197518570 49,354,307 26,050,496 - 81661837 67,226,628 591,667 2976,675,890
At31 March 2017: RNITEIR3IE
Cost Fik 3557,123,776 274937912 1,197,781244 256,354,290 60,886,254 116,880,436 171,780,908 1,338,151  5,637,082,971
Accumulated depreciation RitE (1,000,851,391)  (77,419,362) (1,148,426937) (232,303,794)  (60,886,254)  (35,218,599)  (104,554,260) (746,484) (2,660,407,081)
Net carrying amount A 2,556,272,385  197,518570 49,354,307 24,050,496 - 81,661,837 67,226,628 591,667  2,976,675,890
31 March 2016 016538318
At 1 April 2015; ROISELRIR
Cost Fi 3057123776 274937912 1159978681 23596454 60,886,254 75485808 150,109,754 1018019 5515096658
Accumulated depreciation it (Bie565460)  (65508674)  (1149.969676)  (22156185T)  (60886.254)  (19695776) (63853689 (945,480)  (2428,986,866)
Net carrying amount A 2710558316 209429238 10,009,005 13,994,597 = 55,790,032 86,256,065 72539 3086109792
At 1 April 2015, net of RISELR 1R
accumulated depreciation MHEsHTE 2710558316 209429238 10,009,005 13,994,597 = 55,790,032 86,256,065 72539 3086109792
Additions HE = = 13998590 093064 = 5033097 7581880 = 27306611
Depreciation provided during ~ ER5HEHE
the year (77.142966) (5,955,334 (1,471,859) (5,079.953) - (7372188)  (2080276) (50528 (117.713,101)
Disposal HE - - - - - - (189.462) - (189.442)
At 31 March 2016, net of R016%E3A3IE
accumulated depreciation IBZE 2633415350 203473904 22535,73 9,607,688 = 53450941 73008227 2016 2995513860
At 31 March 2016; RN6EIRIE
Cost AR 3957123776 274931912 117397121 236269498 60,886,204 80518905 156,834,546 1018019 5541546,181
Accumulated depreciation iHE (923708426)  (71.464008) (1151441535)  (226641810)  (60886254)  (27067964)  (83826319) (994,005)  (2546,032.321)
Net carrying amount RESE 2633415350 203473904 22535736 9,607,688 = 53450961 73008227 2016 2995513860
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13. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes:

0]

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

On 22 May 2000, the Government of the HKSAR granted the Inland Lot No. 8969
at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam to the Group for a term of 50 years at a lump sum
initial premium of HK$1,000 and an annual rent of an amount equal to 3% of the

rateable value of the said Lot from time to time.

On 24 May 2000, the Company entered into a sub-lease agreement (“Sub-lease
Agreement”) with the immediate holding company whereby a portion of the
Inland Lot No. 8969 at Telegraph Bay, Pokfulam (“Cyberport Portion”) is sub-

leased to the Company from the immediate holding company at nil rental.

The buildings are situated on the leasehold land granted.

Centres equipment represents equipment of Entrepreneurship Centre and
Technology Centre funded by government grant and used for the purpose of the
designated projects.

As at 31 March 2017, the fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with
the associated building services and support facilities) amounted to HK$6,602
million (2016: HK$6,492 million). The aggregate carrying value of such assets
amounted to HK$2,606 million (2016: HK$2,656 million). The fair value of the
buildings held for rental (together with the associated buildings services and
support facilities) as at 31 March 2017 was determined based on a valuation
carried out by Colliers International (Hong Kong) Limited, an independent

professional valuer.

The fair value of the buildings held for rental (together with the associated
building services and support facilities) falls within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy and is determined using the income capitalisation approach by
discounting the expected rental income using capitalisation rate adjusted for the

quality and location of the buildings.

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amount of furniture and
equipment held under finance lease of the Group was HK$4.2 million (201é:
HK$6.1 million).

13. % -« i Raath (@

BysE

0]

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

FR20005E5 8 228 » FEFEBAFEZA
E EHE I OLHSHIAM DA 8 P 3 ER
89695k 2 3 » — M - E 21,000
BT FRHAANE  MEENAEE
REAE S 1 Al e S R B B P R 2= A AR
B3% ©

FR20006F5 8248 » ANABEERERA
BET— R MR (DR BZHL) o R
BN > AABRERERAT
DI EMIDAR & A3 EE 89695 L R —
o i (TEREEID ) > AABEE
F{IHE o

BEBFUNEMBE M -

FRLER TS U Bh = E B I A I S
EEEZEEERPOMBHDLZR
f o

R20174E3H31 8 » F{EHHEET (ER
FEREZ BT RS B B ) 2 A EE
766021887 (20164 © 64.92(8H87T) ©
B E 2 ARBR B 2 26.06 (88 7T (2016
£ 1 265618HBTT) o HERELAET
(EEMERAZIEF RS E BRI 7
201743831 HZ ARBETRIEEIISE
GBS DBERYERR (F8) 5R
ATETZEEEE ©

RIEL TS (ERER 2 AR B ST
BRI 2 AABEBRANBESR
RZE=R > HRARABERELE
o BEARAEMARRTZIERR
RS E AR 2 B AL R TR S
WSS -

RMEHPR > ~EERBEREAER
BZRARREZREEALL0E BT
(20164 : 610&EHTT) ©
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BRI

14.

15.

Cyberport Macro Fund Investment

14, BIERIRERFEERIRE

Unlisted equity investment, at fair value

FEEPRAKRE » BANMEE

6,221,450 -

During the year, to further extend the Group's entrepreneurial
support to scalable start-ups, the Group has launched the CMF
for Hong Kong-based digital entrepreneurs. With an initial size of
HK$200 million, the CMF aims to accelerate the growth of digital
technology start-ups. As an investment fund that targets to co-invest
in Cyberport digital entrepreneurs with other private and public
investors as seed to Series A stage funding, the CMF also aims to
encourage the development of a venture capital ecosystem for start-
ups in Hong Kong.

The above investment consists of investment in equity securities
which was designated as available-for-sale financial assets and has
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

Investments in Securities

FR - BE—DIIATERHIER
PRIEXZRIESE  SEBEAT
BHIBAIERMB B EREREER
T o BN EREBREESVINRER
#2EB T TEBMNEBREAA
TEERBLE - FIEREAFEES
ER—BRERES > SREEHEMALA
RAFBEREELFREHE B Z
AIER REBFHEERENUEAR
ME > TEESREEEBAEEER
RIRERE ©

tiREREEE AP HEESRME
EREETEIHHRNRENRZRAE
RRITIRE ©

REFIRE

Non-current assets JERENE
Held-to-maturity investments HEERRBERKTE 430,053,583 559,202,194
Current assets MEEE
Held-to-maturity investments EEERIERKRE 124,966,240 88,059,239
Investments at fair value through profit or loss AN BESTAEGZIRE 445,746,900 316,287,667
570,713,140 404,346,906
1,000,766,723 963,549,100
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15.

16.

Investments in Securities (continued)

(@) Held-to-maturity investments

15.

EHRE )
@) RHEZEIPAKRYE

Listed fixed interest debt securities 5B EMEEFE
in Hong Kong B%ES 531,872,373 600,607,945
Unlisted debt securities JE ETH{EFE 23,147,450 46,653,488
Net book amount REDVEE 555,019,823 647,261,433
The net book amount is analysed as follows: BREEHEDTAT :
Maturing over one year R—FL EFIHR 430,053,583 559,202,194
Maturing within one year R—FEREIHA 124,966,240 88,059,239
555,019,823 647,261,433
Market value of listed debt securities FEREEE s THE 533,590,319 603,743,939
Market value of unlisted but quoted debt JEEHERRERT
securities 552 A 23,257,827 46,611,452
556,848,146 650,355,391

(b) Investments at fair value through profit or loss

(b) BARBEFABHZRE

Listed fixed interest debt securities: EHEENEERES
- In Hong Kong —&5BERN 119,141,970 83,203,222
- Outside Hong Kong — HAEIESN 240,902,589 220,538,753
Unlisted but quoted fixed interest JE LT EEREEEF S
debt securities (et T 85,702,341 12,545,692
445,746,900 316,287,667
Trade receivables 16. FEURBRZR

Trade receivables FEUBR TR 10,069,383 5,428,888
Impairment A (869,829) (759,021)
9,199,554 4,669,867
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BRI

16.

Trade receivables (continued)

The credit period given to customers is generally 0 to 30 days.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable
balances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

The movements in provision for impairment of trade receivables are

as follows:

16.

FEURBRTR (&)

MTYTERPZEER—HRAIEIIDX o
A @ 5 B B AS EHI E R Uk 2] 2~ FEUR
MIEUBEERMRPEERE o B
FRAE AR EIEEERER o AEEN
ERERWRE RIS A KRR
FHEITEM S EIRFHEN ° EURRRR
ARE o

FEWBRTBIE B BT ¢

At beginning of year F4] 759,021 1,421,649
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) SRERTE (fEEe) 121,493 10,685
Impairment losses reversed (note 6) BEIRERE (FIske) (10,685) -
Amount written off as uncollectible b P = NI El | - (673,313)
869,829 759,021

An aged analysis of the trade receivables that are not individually nor

collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

AR A B SR ERBEAR R IRU(E = FE U AR R
ZARE DT

Neither past due nor impaired REHATMRRE 4,101,963 1,316,826
Less than one month past due BHR DR 1E B 4,672,445 2815,813
One to three months past due wHA E3{EH 416,575 424,668
Over three months past due BIHA3ME B A & 8,571 112,560

9,199,554 4,669,867

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a
number of independent customers for whom there is no recent
history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a number
of independent customers that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the Directors are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these balances
as there has not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

KRBT EREZ BYERSZ R
B EENT R B Z AR

BHERBARIRLE < FEWGRIR B T B R
SRR RIFFECEBIUERE
B o IRBBEESR - EFRNHBET
ZEERIERERE REZREEER
R EB AR B A RSERTRARS
BlE= GBI
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17.

18.

19.

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables 17. FE(AFRIE - e R H thEULER
|

Prepayments SEINESEE 4,466,568 3,598,833
Deposits W 4,506,960 5,068,642
Other receivables HihpEWIg 10,086,019 12,003,377
19,059,547 20,670,852
None of the above assets is either past due or impaired. Financial ot EEREARAINERE o st AL
assets included in the above balances relate to receivables for which MAEERR T SRS ERT HmEL R
there was no recent history of default. FEWGRIER R ©
Cash and bank balances 18. RERIRITETE

Cash and bank balances RS MIRITHET 84,678,485 147,444,907
Time deposits TEHATERR 22,466,484 37,841,457
107,144,969 185,286,364
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank IRTTIRERIES HIRTTERF LT
deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between EFEBREA R o EHIERREASE
1 to 3 months depending on the immediate cash requirements of the & 2 BNEFIRE BRI E > AR
Group, and earns interest at the respective time deposit rates. The TIEIEBAE » TIAZBZEMRF
bank balances and time deposits are deposited with creditworthy THEBREA B o iR1T4EF R EHE
banks with no recent history of default. MEACHRN BN R A EE R
ZHRIT o
Rental and other deposits 19. fHERHMEE
Included in rental deposits are amounts of HK$49,076,395 (2016: HEREOEBEATIR —FRE
HK$42,576,790) which are not expected to be settled within one year. 5 2 R I8 49,076,395 7 7T (2016 4

42,576,790 7T) ©
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BT ERRMIEE

20. Obligations under a finance lease 20. FIEHEKIE
The Group leases certain of its information technology facilities. The AEBHEE TEMRHRRM o %
lease is classified as finance lease and has remaining lease terms of EWofEARMEBEHREE > R NHEEA
1.75 years. 1754 o
At 31 March 2017, the total future minimum lease payments under 7R20174E3H31H » MEHEEE T~
finance lease and their values were as follows: FERRBEAEMAEREREENT !

Present Present

value of value of

Minimum Minimum minimum minimum

lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

REHEE REHE BEHE REHE

= (g {IRRRE IR E

2017 2016 2017 2016

HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$

BT BT BT BT

Amount payable: FE(FE |

Within 1 year —FR 2,107,080 2,107,080 2,095,355 2,086,322

In the second year BTE 1,580,310 2,107,080 1,577,476 2,095,355

In the third to fifth years, inclusive F-ERF (BEEERF) - 1580310 - 1577477

Total minimum finance lease payments  E{EREEHR &I F/E%E 3,687,390 5,794,470 3,672,831 5,759,154
Future finance charges FRREER (14,559) (35,316)
Total net finance lease payable BRETRERMFIERE 3,672,831 5,759,154
Portion classified as current liabilities D EAREBEZ DD (2,095,355) (2,086,322)
Non-current portion ERE D 1,577,476 3,672,832
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21.

22.

Development Maintenance Fund

It represents a fund received by the Group in accordance with the
terms of a project agreement entered into among the Company, the
immediate holding company, HKCADL, Pacific Century Cyberworks
Limited (now renamed as PCCW Limited) and Cyber-Port Limited
on 17 May 2000 (the “Project Agreement”). Pursuant to the Project
Agreement, the purpose of the fund is for upkeep and maintenance of
the common telecommunications, media and information technology
facilities available to the tenants and visitors (the “Shared Cyberport
facilities”).

Upon acquisition of relevant assets for replacements, the costs
of the acquired assets will be transferred from the Development
Maintenance Fund ("DMF") account to the Capital Reserve account in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, Shared Cyberport facilities of HK$20,104,792 (2016:
HK$693,044) were acquired and funded by the DMF. Accordingly,
this amount has been transferred from the DMF to Capital Reserve
account.

Facilities Maintenance Fund

On 5 September 2006, the Company, HKCADL, and the immediate
holding company entered into a third agreement to amend the Project
Agreement of the Cyberport Project with PCCW Limited and Cyber-
Port Limited. Pursuant to the third agreement, a maintenance fund of
HK$50,000,000 for the purpose of maintenance and upgrading of the
Cyberport Portion was received by the Group (“Facilities Maintenance
Fund”, “FMF").

Upon acquisition of the assets, the cost of the replaced assets will be
transferred from the FMF account to the Capital Reserve account in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy.

During the year, building services and support facilities of
HK$29,975,074 (2016: HK$9,633,700) were funded by the FMF.
Accordingly, this amount has been transferred from the FMF to
Capital Reserve account.

21.

22.

HRMEEESE

ZEETEAEERBEHEQF
EiEZER AT ~ HKCADL ~ BRI 808
BHERAE CRBEBARBEBRA
B]) REMABRA B 200055817
BErE:] 2 S B st 8% (51811
%) ZIERFTEN 2 B o iRIKZET
2% > ZBEESEEREREBE
HEKRAEBHA AT - Btk
BERH R (TSRS ARHE) o

REAEEZ G5THGR » REEEER
BEEUFEHRE  EREEEZNL
RitEREERS (EREERES))
IRPEREEAREIRS o

FEN - £ E84201047927%8 75 (2016
T 69304478 7T) Z S A R
EHEREBECHEETRMES o
At > ZERBEEREREECESHE
BREBEARRERE o

AR IS B &

112006598 5H » A 8] ~ HKCADL
REEERADHEBABRERAT
KREMBERABZEIE=DHEU
BSTES Bt a8z - RIBEZE=M
ek » ANEEERF—E50008 B2
HIEEEIE 0 BIEREREEENE
BED (MRMEEERE]) °

BEAEREZESER > RRBEEEE
& > WEIRZ BERAR BRIEHEE
BT WRETERFRFRS o

FER > %8 A29975074 7 75 (2016
£ 1 9,633,700787T) ZIEFHRFS KT 1B
RECHRMHEESIREES -
It - ZERIEE BRI EE S EE
ZEARBIRE o
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BRI

23. Share capital

24.

25.

23. Bg7s

Issued and fully paid: BETRAE
2 ordinary shares 2R AR 2 2
Reserves 24, {{E

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein

for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated

statements of changes in equity.

Operating lease arrangements

(a)

As lessor

The Group leases certain buildings (note 13) under operating
lease arrangements. The leases are negotiated for terms
ranging from 1 to 6 years. The terms of the leases also require
the tenants to pay a security deposit.

At 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants falling due as follows:

FEBAFERBEFEZ #RERR
REEH 2N iRERnEE -

25. EETHESHE

(a)

ERETEA

AEEREBECEHEZHEER
EFRF (FE13) - ZEHE
PR EZMBN FIEEER
% o HEMFRMRTERBL M
ReERE °

R2017E3831 8 » AEEIRE
HAMPSETZ Ao fiisgE
FAENARKRREEBAELR
AREERHABERAT

Within one year —FR 159,709,588 149,213,048
In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_ELFE(BFEERE

M) 145,113,600 138,538,987

304,823,188 287,752,035
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25. Operating lease arrangements (continued)
(b) Aslessee

The Group leases its information technology facilities under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these facilities are
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 month to 3 years.

As 31 March 2017, the Group had total future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due
as follows:

. IERRRH (B
(b) {EARAA

FERRBEEHEZHEE
BRI o ?ﬁf%%ﬁﬁa%
EZHPANF—EBRE=F -

MR20174E3831H » ~EERE
] B A B Y R 2R R A
FE7E & 1 4R ZE B HA 1S S N

Within one year —FR 14,521,294 16,427,248
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ERF (BEEE
M) 10,783,651 25,304,945
25,304,945 41,732,193
26. Commitments 26. i

In addition to the operating lease commitments details in note 25
above, the Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period.

B ST 265 1l 2 AR S FH BRI
Sh o REENREHAR Z B AREEN
o

Contracted, but not provided for B4 > (BRERH

29,075,604 44,089,527
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27. Related party transactions

(a)

The Company is wholly owned by the Government of
the HKSAR via The Financial Secretary Incorporated. In
accordance with revised HKAS 24 “Related party disclosures”
issued by HKICPA, government-related entities and their
subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by the Government of HKSAR
are defined as related parties of the Group. On that basis,
related parties include the immediate holding company and
its subsidiaries (other than the Company), other government-
related entities and their subsidiaries, other entities and
corporations in which the Group is able to control or exercise
significant influence and key management personnel of the
Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2017, approximately 3%
(2016: 3%) of the Group's revenue are rental income, building
management income and other facilities income derived from
the Government of HKSAR and other government-related
entities. All these services are conducted in the normal course
of business and in accordance with the Group's pricing policy.

The balances with the immediate holding company and fellow
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.

No compensation was paid to the key management personnel
of the Group in respect of their services rendered to the Group
during the year (2016: Nil).

27. RS RZH

(a)

ARBHEEBREHTHE BT
BRYVRAAREIEZERE
B REETBEFAMAER
T ES] BB G5 ERIF 24
SRTRARR S MEE ) 2R E » FLE
BRFIITHEBFERZIHE
Bz s HEERRNZEEKR
FEZBNERERAKENE
NE R ERTER 2R
73 o IRIRAER - BT 8%
EEERASRENRBAR (4
ARSI ~ EMMETIERAE R
REMBAT ~ A& EEES
HAEIMERZE HithER
REEUNAERZ T EEE
AB e

HZE2017FE3831HIEEE » &K
BE& BT & BT Kk E At
BISEREAER AR A ~ 12
FEIEWA REMEHEUR AL
EARE B WA Z3% (20164
3%) ° B ZERFBIGTEIETE
HBREPRAERZ EEBR
AT o

SBERERARRERWE L
Bl Z BRI EIRR - 2B K
REREE o

ER - TERAERFTESE
AE R4 EEIR MR A
MEZ NS (20165 :© #F) o
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28. Financial instruments by category 28. HEHNZSHERTR

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial R T ARRSHRZEERE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as follows: aWr

31 March 2017 201743831H

Financial assets ERMEE

Financial
assets at

fair value
through
profit or Available- Held-to-
loss - held for-sale maturity Loans and
for trading investment  investments receivables

RARER

StARRR REE

BEEEZ e 5I#R BXR

SHEE RE RE FEE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT #7 #7 #

Deferred rental receivables ELRREE - - - 15738361 15,738,361
Available-for-sale investment HHERE - 6,221,450 - - 6,221,450
Investments in securities BERE 445,746,900 - 555,019,823 - 1,000,766,723
Trade receivables FEUERR - - - 919955 9,199,554
Financial assets included in prepayments, st ATEEIE « e R

deposits and other receivables HtEWEIE SRIEE - - - 14592979 14,592,979
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries ERRZNBARTE - - - 2348448 2,348,448
Cash and bank balances ReRRTiE - - - 107,144,969 107,144,969

445,746,900 6,221,450 555,019,823 149,024,311 1,156,012,484

Financial liabilities ER&E

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

BB A

SRR
AR

Trade payables FEITRRRR 35,472,265

Financial liabilities included in other payables A EAMENZIE L EETER
and accruals TREE 55,429,833
Rental and other deposits HEREMEE 79,426,375
Amount due to the immediate holding company FE{TBEIZIZIR AT TUIE 254,293,578
Obligations under a finance lease RS E AR 3,672,831
428,294,882
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BFEIRRIMTEE
28. Financial instruments by category (continued) 28. HERHNISHERTA @
31 March 2016 201653H31H
Financial assets ERIEE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or Available- Held-to-
oss - held for-sale maturity Loans and
for trading investment investments  receivables
BRARER
AR
KEEEZ : Bk
THEE £ [ felza
HKS$ HKS$
BT ; ; BT
Deferred rental receivables RS - - - 14,690,545 14,690545
Investments in securities FELE 316,287,667 - 647261433 - 963549100
Trade receivables FEUERR - - - 4,669,887 4,669,867
Financial assets included in prepayments, ST ATEREIE « & &
deposits and other receivables HtEWTIE, SREE - - - 17,072,019 17,072,019
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries N EE AT ERE] - - - 1892385 1892385
Cash and bank balances RERRTHEE - - - 185286364 185,286,364
316,287,667 - AT6143 223611180 1187140280
Financial liabilities el =

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost

P s

SR

SRaE

HK$

BT

Trade payables FE(TBRFR 45,693,220
Financial liabilities included in other payables st AEHfENTIBLESTER

and accruals FTREE 24,621,250

Rental and other deposits HEREMEE 717,001,592

Amount due to the immediate holding company &I B #3%RG A TS 254,303,568

Obligations under a finance lease RETHERE 5,759,154

407,378,784
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29.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that reasonably

approximate to fair values, are as follows:

29. EMITAZARBERARE

B4R

FEBETHITAZREEBRANMEE
REEREQANBESERENER
THERRINIT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
RE(E QiEE
2017 2017
HK$ HK$
B A
Financial assets EHEE
Available-for-sale investment At ERE 6,221,450 - 6,221,450 -
Investments in securities EHEE 1,000,766,723 963549,100  1,002,595,046 966,643,058
1,006,988,173 963549100  1,008,816,496 966,643,058
Financial liabilities SRiEE
Finance lease payables RERERIE 3,672,831 5,759,154 3,672,831 5,759,154

The Group has assessed that the fair values of deferred rental
receivables, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, cash and bank
balances, balances with fellow subsidiaries and the immediate
holding company, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, rental and other deposits approximate to its
carrying amount largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial asset and financial liability are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a
forced or liquidation sale. The following method and assumption
were used to estimate the fair value:

The fair value of unlisted available-for-sale equity investment has
been estimated using the recent market transaction price.

The fair value of finance lease payable has been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates currently
available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The Group's own non-performance risk for
finance lease payables as at 31 March 2017 was assessed to be
insignificant.

The fair values of listed debt investments are based on quoted
market prices.

FEEEMLELRWAES « BIER
M FTATRNRIR ~ B R EMEK
MIAEZ TMEE - RERBITEE
HREZRMB AR MERERABD A
B~ IEITRRAR ~ StAH MBI RIER
BstERZEMaR e hHEMIZ
TZRAABEAHREERES > T2
RS TREGHANEIE -

THBEEREREEZ AAEEUR
£ BEWEHEEENHERIN)
ETHERR PRI TAMNSEEA
AR o FIIAERBRBI G ANE
& :

FELHAIHHERAKREZ ANEE
BRRBETHSERZEIFLEET o

MEHERMRIBEZ ANBERSERB
ERER « GERR NG MRS
BT B BAA] AR =T IRTERAAR 5k
WEMEFTEEFE o 1220173831
B AEEHERERMRENG
BREITRREEHHEAMIER o

EHEEERE T AR EERTIERE
A o
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EMIRZARBERARE

29. Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial 29.

instruments (continued) BEEHR @

Fair value hierarchy AREEELR

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy TRETNAEESRTENAAEE
of the Group's financial instruments: TEER

Assets measured at fair value: BAREEAENEE :

As at 31 March 2017 h220175£3H31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEERAUTEEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

AR RE EXARE EAFIER

BANE BANE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

(B—4R) (B=4) (B=%)

HK$ HK$ HK$

A B B
Available-for-sale investment O HERE - 6,221,450 - 6,221,450
Investments in securities EHRE 360,044,559 85,702,341 - 445,746,900
360,044,559 91,923,791 - 451,968,350

As at 31 March 2016 Kt2016%3A31H

Fair value measurement using

ARBEFRAUTSETE

Quoted prices
in active
markets

ERTERE

(Level 1)
(E—H)
HK$
BT

13

Investments in securities ek d=] 303741975

Significant Significant

observable unobservable
inputs
EATEE
BAHE

inputs
BARIEHR
BAHE
(Level 2) (Level 3)
(B=H) (B=#)
HK$ HK$
BT BT

12,545,692 =

316,287,667
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29.

30.

Fair value and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 March 2017

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2017.

As at 31 March 2016

The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at fair value
as at 31 March 2016.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3
for both financial assets and financial liabilities (2016: Nil).

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(a) Financial risk factors

The Group’s principal financial instruments comprises
investments in securities, an available-for-sale investment and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these financial
instruments is to finance for the Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The Board
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks
and they are summarised below.

Credit risk

Receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis and
the Group's exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Details in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk
arising from trade receivables are disclosed in note 16 to
the financial statements. The credit risk of the Group's other
financial assets, which comprise deferred rental receivables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables, amounts due from fellow subsidiaries, investments
in securities, available-for-sale investment, cash and bank
balances, arises from default of the counterparty, with a
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.

29.

30.

EMIRAZAREBERARE
HER @)

DREEELR (B)
BAREBEHNENEE
142017438318

KEE 201753831 B A EAE A #7
N EEFENERmEE -

2016538318

EEF 2016538 31 B i1 EAE ] 1%
NAEEFENERMEE o

ER > eMEERSRAEEMS
F—REF_RBUTEER AR
BESE TESAIBHE=R
(20164 © §8) o

MBRMREEBEREE
@) MEBEBER

FEENTESM T AOES
SFRE - JHEERENUKRIR
ERIBTEFT - ZFEMIA
NEZENEATEENEE
RHEE -
rEESMTEELENETER
pREERRE  RBETERE
RRERR ZEZFBE KW
EEE R IEAAR BRI BUER
ZEBERITAT o

EEAERE

FERFBERBWEHNE
oo EEE BYIRAR R MR I S B
* o

BERAEERBERRMFTEER
EERRFBERERTBR
wMIEE16 - ZEBMHEMEHE
E (BERIERWES - st AR
RIE ~ BE RE MBI
NWEMEE - BUERNBR
BRI E ~ A E
BRE - RERRTER) NEE
EEREZXZHFNEN » &
REBHEERZE TANKRE
=0

SR 2016/17 &R
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity
securities decrease as a result of change in the value of
underlying individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from individual equity investment classified as
available-for-sale investment (note 14) as at 31 March 2017.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 10%
change in the fair value of the equity investment to which the
Group has significant exposure at the end of the reporting
period, with all other variables held constant and before any
impact of on tax. For the purpose of this analysis, in regards of
the available-for-sale investment, the impact is deemed to be
on the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and
no account is given for factors such as impairment which might
impact the profit or loss.

Unlisted equity investment:
— A E

- available-for-sale

FFEMRARE !

30. BFERAMREIEEIEREE @)

(a)

Carrying amount

of investments

MESEBEER (&)
R (& E

RER 15585 A N EEEE
BB 5] 55 25 B B (B & B i P& 1K
BIRESE o 72017438 31H » 4~
SEEHNKRERRKREDEE
A HEERENER KA
& (FIsE14) ©

TRETR RS RS EREA
BEEXRRRIREARENNE
BEE28)10% (FFIEEMEER
RAZERSAAEARBTEE
A1) BIBRUE  RULE DTS »
BRI HEERENTERE
REPHEEREEMFHAE
%> BX At ARISER BiBm
BUREFHER -

Change in
equity*
g
HK$

BT

REIREE

HK$
#IT

6,221,450 622,145

* Excluding accumulated loss

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group is unable to meet
its current obligations when they fall due. Prudent liquidity
risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash and
the availability of funding through operating cash flows and
advance from the immediate holding company.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.

* TEIERSHESIE

hENE = E R

nBEERARIEEERRERE
BHHNEMREHHEAR - F
BENRBESRREEEES
BEERTRERERERA
BN B RERF RRRE K] H
BAES -

FERENHREEREREA
REBHBRBEZFR > HBF
MR EANREEREE > mER
ARSI EEHRE
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies 30. BAFEEEEIEAEREE @)

(continued)

(@) Financial risk factors (continued) () BABEEREZE (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) meEnE R (&)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at AEBRBREPHRBESLHR
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual IRERNEREaEEHHER
undiscounted payments, is as follows: TN

Repayable
on demand/
less than 1 year 1to 2 years Over 2 years
HEREE/
—FHF MmENL
HK$ HK$
B B
Trade payables FE(TARRR 35,472,265 - - 35,472,265
Financial liabilities included in other st AR AAE(IFUER
payables and accruals ErERNEREaR 55,429,833 - - 55,429,833
Rental and other deposits e REMEE 30,349,980 21,712,083 27,364,312 79,426,375
Amount due to the immediate e EEERAT
holding company ES0EE] 254,293,578 - - 254,293,578
Obligations under a finance lease HEAERIE 2,107,080 1,580,310 - 3,687,390

377,652,736 23,292,393 27,364,312 428,309,441

Repayable
on demand/
less than 1 year [ROVACERS Over 2 years
REREE/
) ) MELLE
HK$ HK$
BT ; BT
Trade payables FETERAR 45,693,220 - - 45,693,220
Financial liabilities included in other st AR ZUIEK
payables and accruals FEtERNSRER 24,621,250 = = 24,621,250
Rental and other deposits e REMEE 34,424,802 16,991,792 25,584,998 77,001,592
Amount due to the immediate e BB AT
holding company A 254,303,568 = = 254,303,568
Obligations under a finance lease HERERE 2,107,080 2,107,080 1580310 5,794,470
361,149,920 19,098,872 27,165,308 407,414,100
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30. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(a)

(b)

Financial risk factors (continued)
Currency risk

The Group's functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. The
Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through investment
in securities that are denominated in other currencies, being
primarily United States dollars (‘USD") and Renminbi (‘RMB").
As the Hong Kong dollars is pegged to the USD, the Group
considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
the Hong Kong dollars and the USD to be insignificant.

In respect of balances denominated in RMB, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level by adjusting
the level of RMB denominated investments.

As at 31 March 2017, investment in securities denominated
in RMB amounting to HK$31,833,405 (2016: HK$101,128,675).
Management estimated that a 5% appreciation/depreciation
of RMB against Hong Kong dollars would have decreased/
increased the Group’s loss for the year and increased/
decreased total equity by HK$1,591,670 (2016: HK$5,056,434).
The sensitivity analysis assumes that the change in foreign
exchange rates had been applied to re-measure those financial
instruments which expose the Group to foreign currency risk at
the end of the reporting period.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management is to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure
to reduce the cost of capital. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during
the year.

Capital of the Group comprises all components of shareholder’s
equity. Management reviews the capital structure periodically
and manages its overall capital structure if necessary. As at 31
March 2017 and 2016, the Group was in a net cash position.

30. BERAMEEBAEREE @

(a)

(b)

SRR
REBBINEEREABIT o &
EREAENEERREFEEZRE

MEME®(FEAETMAR
) FHEMEESRE ° AN BT
HETE > AEBERA BT
BETHINEZEFH R RERAK o

MUARBENGEEFEMS
AEEBBAFAEA E’ﬁ“@‘:ﬂﬁ&
BREBEEARRREZERFRER
AR K ©

2017438310 » UARKS
BRI E 431,8334058 7T
(20164 : 101,128,675 75) ©
BEE M ARBRETH
B/ B ENAEENFE
E518 R D /158 0 e M 2 4R KB I 1T
/78710 1,591,6707 75 (2016 £E :
5,056,434787T) © BRLE D TR
RINEEEESHBAREN
ERECHAERNREHFRK
EINERPEIERTA o

B4 EE

FEEEAEENTIEZEBRA
RESEBFEEENES
mﬁ%%ﬁmkﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁ
Ro&E®RNG > THERFR

BERERE > LUV E K&
o FR - BEAEENER
BUREAZ P il SR (T2 ) o

AEBNEATERRERDN
FTESD - EEEBTEHRTE
EERE o WIENERFEEEHAE
BB AR o REE20174F
F22016F38 31 BN IREF
EBARIT ©
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31.

Statement of financial position of the Company

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

31. TLEMBRRER

RRABFBHRRRIREARBER
mr

NON-CURRENT ASSETS JERENE
Property, plant and equipment WEE MR R 2,976,675,890 2,995,513,860
Deferred rental receivables IRIEFEUN AR 15,738,361 14,690,545
Investments in securities R E 430,053,583 559,202,194
Investment in a subsidiary B ABIRE 1 -
Total non-current assets IEmEBEERE 3,422,467,835 3,569,406,599
CURRENT ASSETS MEEE
Inventories 78 595,761 450,650
Trade receivables FEUSBR =t 9,199,554 4,669,867
Prepayments, deposits and FAIRUE ~ < R H AU

other receivables g 19,059,547 20,670,852
Amounts due from fellow subsidiaries FEWE R B ATIE 2,348,448 1,892,385
Amounts due from subsidiaries WM B AT RIS 6,796,422 -
Investments in securities RSN E 570,713,140 404,346,906
Cash and bank balances WE MIETERF 107,144,969 185,286,364
Total current assets BB EARE 715,857,841 617,317,024
CURRENT LIABILITIES wEaR
Trade payables FE(TBRTR 35,472,265 45,693,220
Other payables and accruals HnE R IE R EstE R 60,388,352 24,621,250
Rental and other deposits HEREMIZS 79,426,375 77,001,592
Amount due to the immediate holding company  FE{Y B 15122 B% /A B =018 254,293,578 254,303,568
Obligations under a finance lease RS E A 2,095,355 2,086,322
Total current liabilities P =K=F R 431,675,925 403,705,952
NET CURRENT ASSETS TENEERE 284,181,916 213,611,072
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 4AEEFREIAE 3,706,649,751 3,783,017,671
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES JERENEE
Development maintenance fund BREERE 402,110,194 422,214,986
Facilities maintenance fund B - 29,975,074
Obligations under a finance lease RBEREEE 1,577,476 3,672,832
Total non-current liabilities IEREI BB 403,687,670 455,862,892
Net assets BERE 3,302,962,081 3,327,154,779
EQUITY R
Share capital [RZN 2 2
Capital reserve RN 5,363,136,217 5,313,056,351
Accumulated losses E5tEE (2,060,174,138) (1,985,901,574)
Total equity HETARRE 3,302,962,081 3,327,154,779

Lee George LAM
HxRiE

Director

EF

Rosanna CHOI Yi-tak
BEE
Director

EF
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32. Approval of the consolidated financial statements 32. EEESUBEN
The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised S EMBERERN2017TEIB 20 EE
for issue by the Board of Directors on 26 September 2017. ERIZETFFAI B o
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